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EXECUTIVE SUMMARY SHEET

MEETING DATE: September 6, 2019 HCR19-103

SUBJECT: Loan Modification and Preliminary Bond Authorization for Grant Heights
Apartments and Winona Apartments

COUNCIL DISTRICT(S): 8 and 9
ORIGINATING DEPARTMENT: Real Estate Division
CONTACT/PHONE NUMBER: J.P. Correia/619-578-7575

REQUESTED ACTION:

Approve a proposed transfer of an existing San Diego Housing Commission loan for the Grant Heights
Apartments, located at 2651-2663 J Street, San Diego, from Urban Housing/Grant Heights LP, to a to-
be-formed limited partnership, and take the initial steps for the Housing Authority of the City of San
Diego to issue up to $9,000,000 of tax-exempt Multifamily Housing Revenue Bonds to facilitate a to-be-
formed limited partnership’s acquisition with rehabilitation of two separate apartment complexes that
are proposed to be combined into a single project to be called Grant Heights II, to be composed of:
Grant Heights Apartments, located at 2651-2663 J Street, and Winona Apartments, located at 3845
Winona Avenue, San Diego, which consists of 41 combined rental housing units that will remain
affordable for 55 years and one manager’s unit.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY OF KEY FACTORS:

e Grant Height was constructed in 1973 and renovated in 2002 using tax credits plus a Housing
Commission residual receipts loan. Winona was constructed in 1986. The properties are located
approximately five miles apart.

e The experienced co-developers, Urban League of San Diego County and San Diego Community
Housing Corporation, propose a 50 percent pay down of the Grant Heights Housing Commission
existing loan. In 2005, Winona paid off its Housing Commission loan.

e The co-developers are seeking preliminary approvals to issue up to $9,000,000 in tax-exempt

Multifamily Housing Revenue Bonds.

Prevailing wages will not apply because neither federal nor state funds will be utilized.

Temporary relocation may be needed as work is taking place in the individual units.

The total development cost is estimated at $16,938,294 ($403,293/unit).

Staff requests that the Housing Commission Board recommend that the Housing Authority of the

City of San Diego approve the transfer of the existing Housing Commission loan and take initial

steps to issue up to $9,000,000 in tax-exempt Multifamily Housing Revenue Bonds.

e Approval of the proposed actions will enable application, on October 11, 2019, to the California Tax
Credit Allocation Committee for a 4 percent tax credit allocation, and to the California Debt Limit
Allocation Committee for a tax-exempt Bonds allocation.

San Diego Housing Commission 1122 Broadway, Suite 300 San Diego, CA 92101  619.231.9400 www.sdhc.org
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DATE ISSUED: August 29, 2019 REPORT NO: HCR19-103

ATTENTION: Chair and Members of the San Diego Housing Commission
For the Agenda of September 6, 2019

SUBJECT: Loan Modification and Preliminary Bond Authorization for Grant Heights
Apartments and Winona Apartments

COUNCIL DISTRICTS: 8 and 9

REQUESTED ACTION

Seven-day advance notice of San Diego Housing Commission (Housing Commission) hearing of the
following matter has been provided to the Housing Authority Members pursuant to the provisions of
San Diego Municipal Code Section 98.0301(e)(4)(a)(b) for Staff Recommendations Nos. 1 — 4.

Approve a proposed transfer of an existing San Diego Housing Commission loan for the Grant Heights
Apartments, located at 2651-2663 J Street, San Diego, from Urban Housing/Grant Heights LP, to a to-
be-formed limited partnership, and take the initial steps for the Housing Authority of the City of San
Diego to issue up to $9,000,000 of tax-exempt Multifamily Housing Revenue Bonds to facilitate a to-
be-formed limited partnership’s acquisition with rehabilitation of two separate apartment complexes
that are proposed to be combined into a single project to be called Grant Heights II, to be composed of:
Grant Heights Apartments, located at 2651-2663 J Street, and Winona Apartments, located at 3845
Winona Avenue, San Diego, which consists of 41 combined rental housing units that will remain
affordable for 55 years, and one manager’s unit.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION

That the San Diego Housing Commission (Housing Commission) take the following actions, and
recommend that the Housing Authority of the City of San Diego (Housing Authority) and San Diego
City Council (City Council) take the following actions as described in this report.

Housing Commission:
Authorize the Housing Commission’s President and Chief Executive Officer (President & CEO), or his
designee, to take the following actions:

1) For the Grant Heights Apartments (Grant Heights), located at 2651-2663 J Street, San Diego:

a. Approve the proposed ownership transfer from the current owner/borrower, Urban
Housing/Grant Heights LP (UHGH), to a to-be-formed limited partnership;

b. Execute any and all necessary documents and instruments to effectuate the transfer to a to-
be-formed limited partnership of the covenants and provisions in the Housing Commission
and UHGH’s existing February 12, 2002 “Acquisition, Rehabilitation and Permanent
Financing Agreement” and the related February 12, 2002 “Declaration of Covenants,
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Conditions and Restrictions,” including extending the affordability term, as described
herein;

c. Adjust financing terms/conditions, as necessary, for consistency with requirements of other
funding sources or to accommodate market changes that may occur;

d. Approve the to-be-formed limited partnership’s assumption of the Housing Commission’s
existing residual receipt loan, along with a 50 percent pay down of the Housing
Commission’s outstanding loan amount at escrow closing/bond issuance;

2) For the Winona Avenue Apartments (Winona), located at 3845 Winona Avenue, San Diego:

a. Approve the development’s proposed ownership transfer from the current owner, San Diego
Community Housing Corporation (SDCHC), to a to-be-formed new limited partnership;

b. Execute any and all necessary documents and instruments to effectuate the transfer to a to-
be-formed limited partnership of the covenants and provisions in the Housing Commission
and SDCHC’s July 16, 1997 “Declaration of Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions,”
including extending the affordability term, as described herein;

c. Adjust financing terms/conditions, as necessary, for consistency with requirements of other
funding sources or to accommodate market changes that may occur;

3) Approve combining Grant Heights and Winona, into one project to be called Grant Heights II;
and

4) Authorize the Housing Commission’s President & CEO, or designee, to take such actions as are
necessary, convenient and/or appropriate to implement these approvals and delegate authority
by the Housing Commission upon advice of the General Counsel:

The proposed approval of these recommendations will be contingent upon the co-developers receiving
all necessary third-party funding commitments as described in this report. Such third-party funding
commitments will be subject to the Housing Commission’s General Counsel’s approval.

Housing Authority:
5) Approve the following steps to issue Housing Authority tax-exempt Multifamily Housing
Revenue Bonds for Grant Heights II:

a. Issue a bond inducement resolution (Declaration of Official Intent) for up to $9,000,000 in
Multifamily Housing Revenue Bonds for the acquisition and rehabilitation of Grant Heights
II by a to-be-formed limited partnership;

b. Authorize an application (and subsequent applications if necessary) to the California Debt
Limit Allocation Committee (CDLAC) for an allocation of authority to issue tax-exempt
Multifamily Housing Bonds in an amount up to $9,000,000 for Grant Heights II. Issuance
of the bonds will require Housing Authority approval at a later date;

c. Approve a bond financing team of Quint & Thimmig L.L.P. as Bond Counsel, and PFM
Group as Bond Financial Advisor;

6) Authorize the Housing Commission’s President & CEQO, or designee, to execute any and all
documents that are necessary to effectuate the transaction and implement these approvals in a
form approved by the General Counsel and the Bond Counsel, and to take such actions as are
necessary, convenient and/or appropriate to implement these approvals upon advice of the
General Counsel and/or the Bond Counsel; and
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City Council
7) Hold a Tax Equity and Fiscal Responsibility Act (TEFRA) public hearing, and adopt a

resolution approving the Housing Authority’s issuance of tax-exempt Multifamily Housing

Revenue Bonds in an amount up to $9,000,000 for the acquisition and rehabilitation of Grant
Heights II.

SUMMARY
A Development Summary is at Attachment 1.

Table 1 —Development Details

Addresses Grant Heights: 2651-2663 J Street, San Diego
Winona: 3845 Winona Avenue, San Diego
Council Districts Grant Heights: 8
Winona: 9

Community Plan Areas | Grant Heights: Southeastern San Diego Community Plan and
Grant Hill Historic District (Grant Hill neighborhood).

Winona: Mid-City Communities Plan (City Heights neighborhood).
Co-developers Urban League of San Diego County (Urban League) and
San Diego Community Housing Corporation (SDCHC)
Development Type Acquisition with rehabilitation.
Construction Type Type V
Parking Type Grant Heights: 28 parking surface spaces
(42 spaces total) Winona: 14 parking spaces (two surface and 12 tuck-under garage spaces)
Housing Type Multifamily
Lot Sizes Grant Heights: .58 acres, 25,265 square feet
Winona: .31 acres, 13,504 square feet
Units (42-units total) Grant Heights: 27 units affordable, plus one manager’s unit
Winona: 14 units affordable, no manager’s unit
Density Grant Heights: 48.3 dwelling units per acre (28 units + .58 acres).

Winona: 24.1 dwelling units per acre (14 units + .31 acres).

Affordable Unit Mix Grant Heights: 10 one-bedrooms (545 to 617 sq. ft.),

17 two-bedrooms (741 to 743 sq. ft.), and one manager’s unit.

Winona: 9 one-bedrooms (533 sq. ft.), 4 two-bedrooms (693 to 939 sq. ft.),
1 three-bedroom (936 sq. ft.), and no manager’s unit.

Gross Building Area Grant Heights: 19,496 square feet.

(28,422 sq. ft. total) Winona: 8,926 square feet.
Net Rentable Area Grant Heights: 18,646 square feet.
(27,397 sq. ft. total) Winona: 8,751 square feet.

The Developments

Grant Heights is an existing 28-unit family rental complex located at 2651-2663 J Street. Winona is an
existing 14-unit family rental complex located at 3845 Winona Avenue. The two properties are located
approximately five miles apart (Attachment 2 - Site Maps). SDCHC and Urban League would like to
form a strategic alliance by combining the ownership of these two existing rental properties into a
single new to-be-formed limited partnership. The co-developers are proposing to combine the two
properties, with a 50 percent pay down on the existing Grant Heights Housing Commission loan.
Combining the two properties may promote economies of scale and may mitigate the impact of
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issuance costs that are inherent in seeking bond issuance allocations and tax credit allocations.
Obtaining a bond issuance allocation from CDLAC will enable the co-developers to apply for 4 percent
tax credits.

Grant Heights was constructed in 1973 and was renovated in 2002 using tax credit funds and Housing
Commission funds. It consists of 28 apartments in two two-story and two three-story walkup buildings,
on approximately .58 acres. It is located south of Market Street, north of Imperial Avenue, near 30"
Street. In February 2002, the Housing Commission provided an $867,279 residual receipts 55-year
subordinate loan to UHGH L.P., an affiliate of Urban League, with affordability restrictions that will
remain in effect until 2057. The Grant Heights units are encumbered/benefited by a Section 8 Housing
Assistance Payment contract with the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development.

Winona was constructed in 1986. It consists of 14 apartments in two two-story and two three-story
walkup buildings, on approximately .31 acres. It is located north of El Cajon Boulevard, east of
Fairmount Avenue, near Euclid Avenue. In July 1997, the Housing Commission provided a $181,753
residual receipts subordinate loan to SDCHC, with 55 years of affordability restrictions. In July 2005,
SDCHC fully paid off the Housing Commission’s loan. Although Winona’s original loan was paid off,
the Housing Commission’s original loan affordability restrictions remain in effect until July 18, 2052.

Co-developers’ Requests
The co-developers are requesting Housing Commission approval to:
a) Allow the ownership transfer of both properties into a single new combined project (to be called
Grant Heights II, to be owned by a to-be-formed limited partnership;
b) Allow the to-be-formed limited partnership to assume the existing Grant Heights loan, with a 50
percent pay down on the loan’s balance;
c¢) Request that the Housing Authority apply for and obtain a CDLAC allocation to issue up to
$9,000,000 of tax-exempt Multifamily Housing Revenue Bonds for the proposed acquisition with
rehabilitation of both properties; and
d) Have the co-developers complete a rehabilitation of the two properties.

No additional Housing Commission cash loan funds are requested for the proposed acquisition with
rehabilitation.

The Properties
Grant Heights is owned by UHGH L.P. (Urban League is the controlling general partner of UHGH

L.P.). The apartments are a mix of one-bedroom, and two-bedroom units, with a community building
and two laundry rooms. It is a wood-frame construction, on a concrete slab, with exterior painted
stucco. Adjacent to the development’s north, south, and east are residential uses. Grant Hill
Neighborhood park is nearby to the east. Directly to the west is the Kimbrough Elementary School.
The 32" & Commerecial trolley station is approximately one mile away.

Winona is owned by SDCHC. These apartments are a mix of one-bedroom, two-bedroom, and three-
bedroom units, with a laundry room. It is a wood-frame construction, on a concrete slab, with exterior
painted stucco. Adjacent to the development’s north and south are single-family residential uses. To the
east are multifamily residential uses. To the west are single-family and multifamily residential uses.
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Building Conditions/Proposed Rehabilitation Work

Both apartment complexes are in need of rehabilitation work to address immediate and long-term
capital needs, to extend useful life and maintain marketability. The scope of the proposed rehabilitation
includes: seismic risk analysis, site improvements, repairs to stairs/railings, exterior facade and walls,
roof replacement, carpet replacement, appliances, cabinets, countertops, drywall repairs, painting, re-
glazing bathtubs, vinyl blinds, laundry room improvements, electrical and plumbing improvements, and
Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 improvements. On July 17, 2019, Partner Engineering and
Science Inc. completed Property Condition Reports for the two properties. A summary of the estimated
scope of rehabilitation work is at Attachments 3A and 3B. The co-developers’ pro forma currently
estimates rehabilitation costs at $3,160,000 ($75,240 per unit) including a 10 percent contingency.

Appraisal
On July 29, 2019, Kinetic Valuation Group appraised Grant Heights at $7,200,000 and appraised
Winona at $2,590,000.

Prevailing Wages
Prevailing wages are not applicable because neither federal nor state funds will be utilized.

Relocation

As of June 2019, there were no vacant units at either property. The co-developers do not anticipate any
permanent relocation of tenants. However, rehabilitation work will necessitate that the tenants may
need to be temporarily relocated while work is taking place in their unit. Relocation will comply with
the Federal Uniform Relocation Act. Overland Pacific & Cutler Inc. will be the relocation consultant.
The co-developers’ pro forma budgets $149,000 for temporary relocation (42 units estimated at $2,000
per unit = $84,000 plus $65,000 for consultant’s costs).

Accessibility
The California Tax Credit Allocation Committee (CTCAC) requires wheelchair accessibility in 10

percent of the units, with an additional 4 percent of the units accessible to residents with visual and/or
hearing impairment.

Project Sustainability

The Grant Heights II combined development will be rehabilitated in conformance with CTCAC’s
minimum energy efficiency standards for rehabilitation projects, which require demonstrating at least 10
percent post-rehabilitation improvement in energy efficiency over existing conditions.

Development Team
Both SDCHC and Urban League are 501(c)(3) nonprofits. Urban League was founded in 1953. Its
focus includes: employment, on-the-job training, youth education, housing counseling, health outreach
for the elderly, and workforce re-entry. It develops, preserves, and maintains affordable housing.
SDCHC was founded in 1994. It is dedicated to developing affordable housing that offers services
designed to assist residents in achieving upward economic mobility. SDCHC’s mission is to increase,
preserve, and improve quality affordable housing opportunities for working families in San Diego. In
addition to Winona, SDCHC currently owns and operates apartments that utilized Housing Commission
loans, as follows:

e Hacienda Townhomes, at 350 17™ Street, San Diego, a 51-unit apartment complex, with a

$748,197 Housing Commission loan that was funded in 1992.
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e Oceanview Apartments, at 3992 Oceanview Boulevard, San Diego, a four-unit complex with
three loans totaling $504,450. It was purchased from the nonprofit HOPE CDC in 2009.
During the tax-credit compliance period, the combined Grant Heights II project will be owned by a to-
be-formed single-asset limited partnership. An organization chart is at Attachment 4.

Table 2 - Development Team Summary

ROLE FIRM/CONTACT

Owner/Borrower To-be-formed tax credit limited partnership
General Partners (.01 percent) Urban League and SDCHC

Tax Credit Investor/Limited Partner (99.99 percent) | To be selected

Developers Urban League and SDCHC

Architect Basis Architecture & Consulting

Property Management To be selected by the co-developers
General Contractor To be selected

Relocation Consultant Overland Pacific & Cutler Inc.
Construction/Permanent Lender To be selected

FINANCING STRUCTURE
The Housing Commission’s existing loan for Grant Heights will not be increased with additional direct
cash loan funds for the proposed acquisition with rehabilitation. The Grant Heights existing residual
receipts loan is estimated at $1,302,830 ($867,279 principal plus $435,551 accrued interest to estimated
closing). The Grant Heights loan will have a 50 percent pay down on the loan’s balance as of the
estimated closing date (currently estimated at $651,415). The proposed pay down amount may be
revised, depending upon final development revenues and costs, as approved by the President & CEO or
his designee. The Housing Commission’s Grant Heights 2002 original loan terms are summarized as
follows: 3 percent simple interest per annum, with payments of 50 percent of all residual receipts, the
loan due in 55 years, with 27 units restricted at 45 to 50 percent of San Diego Area Median Income
(AMI) as defined by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD). The Grant
Heights II proposed combined 42-unit project has an estimated total development cost of $16,938,294
($403,293 per unit). Proposed financing will include a combination of sources including: 4 percent tax
credits, tax-exempt Multifamily Housing Revenue Bond financing, seller carryback financing, a deferred
developer’s fee, and the Housing Commission’s proposed carryback loan financing. The co-developers’
pro forma is included as Attachment 5 and is summarized below.

Table 3 — Estimated Permanent Sources and Uses

Financing Sources Amounts Financing Uses Amounts Per Unit

Acquisition: Building $8,980,000

Permanent loan (Multifamily Land + 810,000

Housing Revenue Bonds) $3,289,000 Total acquisition $9,790,000 $9,790,000 | $233,095

Housing Commission Construction costs $2,872,800

carryback loan on Contingency + 287,280

Grant Heights original financing 668,640 | Total construction $3.160.,080 3,160,080 75,240

Operating income during construction 75,000 | Financing costs 940,174 22,385

Operating reserve transfer 125,000 | Reserves 256,858 6,116

Seller (Urban Housing)

contribution/carryback 5,547,721 | Other soft costs 599,182 14,266

Seller (SDCHC) carryback financing 1,441,539 | Developer fee 1,980,000 47,143

Deferred developer fee 580,000 | Permits & Fees 63,000 1,500

4 percent tax credits equity 5,211,394 | Relocation costs 149,000 3,548

Total Development Cost $16,938,294 | Total Development Cost (TDC) $16,938,294 | $403,293
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Developer Fee
$1,980,000 — Gross developer fee

- 580,000 — Minus deferred developer fee
$1,400,000 — Net cash developer fee (paid from development sources)

On April 25, 2017, the Housing Authority approved the “Request for Approval of Updated Developer
Fees” (HAR17-011). That report approved certain developer fee guidelines for multifamily loans and
bond issuances; its Attachment 1 stated: “Developer Fee [for] 4% tax credits, in project costs: 15%
eligible basis....” The proposal is a $1,980,000 total developer fee that complies with HAR17-011.

Development Cost Key Performance Indicators

Housing Commission staff has identified development cost performance indicators, which were used to
evaluate the proposed development and make a funding recommendation. The key performance indicators
listed in Table 4 are commonly used by real estate industry professionals and affordable housing
developers.

Table 4 - Key Performance Indicators

Development Cost Per Unit $16,938,294 + 42 units = | $403,293
Housing Commission Subsidy Per Unit $668,640 ~ 42 units = |  $15,920
Acquisition/Land Cost Per Unit $9,790,000 + 42 units = | $233,095
Gross Building Square Foot Hard Cost

(combined for two sites) $3,160,080 + 28,422 sq. ft. = $111
Net Rentable Square Foot Hard Cost

(combined for two sites) $3,160,080 +27,397 sq. ft. = $115

Project Comparison Chart

Multiple factors and variables influence the cost of developing multifamily affordable housing, including
but not limited to project location, site conditions, environmental factors, land use approval process,
community involvement, construction type, design requirements/constraints, economies of scale, City fees,
developer experience and capacity, and the mission and goals of the organization developing the project.
Similar construction-type developments (completed or approved) over the previous two years are listed in
Table 5. These developments are similar in terms of size, target population, and rehabilitation/construction
type and are provided as a comparison to the proposed Grant Heights II combined development.

Table 5 - Comparable Development Projects

Gross Hard
New Construction Unit Mix Total Cost Per | HC Subsidy | Cost Per
Project Name Year | Construction | Units | Development Cost Unit Per Unit Sq. Ft.
Proposed 19 ones, 21 $16,938,294
Subject— Grant | 2019 | os ! three 42 (no prevailing | $403,293 | $15,920 $111
. 1 manager
Heights 11 wage)
Harbor View 2018 24 twos, 60 $12,096,464 $201,608 $0 $39

35 threes,
+ 1 manager

Parkside 2018 | 5 ones, 29 twos, 40 $10,668,798 $266,720 $48,556 $97

5 threes,
+ 1 manager (1’10 prev. Wage)

Casa Puleta 2017 | 11twos,26 54 $10,797,804 $328,691 $0 $28

threes, 16 fours,
+ 1 manager (no prev. wage)

(no prev. wage)
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Juniper Gardens 2012 29 twos, 40 $12,260,064 $306,502 $71,103 --

10 threes
+ 1 manager (nO prev. Wage)

Knox Glen 2012 9 twos, 30 54 $10,398,826 $192,571 $49,809 --

threes, 14 fours
> n rcv. wa,
+ 1 manager ( O prev. w ge)

Proposed Housing Bonds

The Housing Commission utilizes the Housing Authority’s tax-exempt borrowing status to pass on
lower interest rate financing (and make 4 percent low-income housing tax credits available) to
developers of affordable rental housing. The Housing Authority’s ability to issue bonds is limited under
the U.S. Internal Revenue Code. To issue bonds for a development, the Housing Authority must first
submit an application to the CDLAC for a bond allocation. Prior to submitting applications to CDLAC,
developments are brought before the Housing Commission, Housing Authority, and City Council.
Housing Authority Bond inducement resolutions must be obtained prior to CDLAC application
submittal, and a City Council Tax Equity and Fiscal Responsibility Act (TEFRA) resolution must be
secured no later than 30 days after application submittal. These actions do not obligate the Housing
Authority to issue bonds.

The co-developers plan to submit a bond application to CDLAC on October 11, 2019, and to obtain a
bond allocation at CDLAC’s December 11, 2019 meeting. If necessary, staff will submit additional
applications to CDLAC to secure a bond allocation for the development.

The co-developers will be seeking a CDLAC bond allocation of approximately $9,000,000. The co-
developers propose to issue the bonds through a tax-exempt private placement bond issuance. The
bonds will meet all requirements of the Housing Commission’s Multifamily Housing Revenue Bond
Program policy and will fully comply with the City’s ordinance on bonds disclosure. The up to
$9,000,000 bond allocation that will be sought from CDLAC is approximately 5.6 percent higher than
the estimated $8,500,000 amount for which the Grant Heights I combined development is being
underwritten. This increased amount represents a bond contingency to account for possible increases in
the bond amount due to increases in construction costs, and/or changes in the assumed interest rate,
and/or the loss of other planned funding sources. The bond amount that is ultimately issued will be
based upon development costs, revenues, and interest rates prevailing at the time of bond issuance. The
co-developers propose that the bonds will be used for acquisition, rehabilitation, and permanent
financing.

If approved by third-party financing sources, Housing Commission staff will return later to both the
Housing Commission and Housing Authority for approval of the final bond amount. A general
description of the Multifamily Housing Revenue Bond Program and the actions that must be taken by
the Housing Authority and by the City Council to initiate and finalize proposed financings are described
in Attachment 6.

Staff recommends assigning Quint & Thimmig L.L.P. as Bond Counsel and the PFM Group as
Financial Advisor to work on the development. The proposed financing team members have been
selected in accordance with the existing policy for the issuance of bonds. Financial Advisors and Bond

Counsels are selected in accordance with the Housing Commission’s Bond Issuance and Post-Issuance
Compliance Policy (No. PO300.301).
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AFFORDABLE HOUSING IMPACT

As shown in Table 6 (below), the Housing Commission’s existing loan and existing bonds restrict 41
units, at Grant Heights and Winona Apartments to households with incomes ranging from 45 to 60

percent of AML

Table 6 — Affordability & Monthly Estimated Rent Table

CTCAC

Unit Type AMI | Units | Gross Rents
Grant Heights: 1-bedroom, 1 bath (550 square feet) 45% 6 $902
Grant Heights: 2-bedrooms, 1 bath (721-743 square feet) | 45% 7 $1,083
Subtotal 45% AMI Units -- 13 --
Grant Heights: 1-bedroom, 1 bath (545-617 square feet) | 50% 4 $1,003
Grant Heights: 2-bedrooms, 1 bath (721-743 square feet) | 50% 10 $1,203
Winona: 1-bedroom, 1 bath (553 square feet) 50% 9 $1,003
Winona: 2-bedrooms, 1 bath (693-939 square feet) 50% 4 $1,203
Winona 3-bedrooms, 1 %2 baths (936 square feet) 50% 1 $1,391
Subtotal 50% AMI Units -- 28 --
2-bedroom Manager’s Unit (721 square feet) - 1 --
Total Units 42

The Housing Commission loans’ original 55-year affordability restrictions will remain in effect:

e On February 12, 2002, Grant Heights received an $867,279 residual receipts loan that included
55 years of affordability restrictions that will remain in effect until 2057, on 27 units at 45 to 50
percent of AML

e OnJuly 16, 1997, Winona received a $181,753 residual receipts loan that included 55 years of
affordability restrictions that will remain in effect until 2051, on 14 units at 50 percent of AMI.

As shown in Table 7 (below), under the proposed actions the properties’ rent and occupancy restrictions

will be extended by an additional 18 years on Grant Heights and an additional 23 years on Winona.

Table 7 — Estimated Current and Proposed Terms of Affordability Restrictions

Amounts Current Restrictions Restrictions
Current Public Funding Owed Restricted Units Current Term Proposed Term
Grant Heights: Original Term: Proposed
Housing Commission’s 55 years: Affordability Term —
original 2002 loan. . . . $867,279 | 13 units at 45 percent AMI Feb 2002 to 55 years:
Estimated accrued interest +435,551 | +14 units at 50 percent AMI Feb 2057 Feb 2020 to
Estimated total 2002 loan $1,302,830 | 27 units restricted Feb 2075
Winona: Original Term: Proposed
Housing Commission’s 14 units restricted 55 years: Affordability Term —
original 1997 loan. . . .. $0: paid off at 50 percent AMI July 1997 to 55 years:
July 2052 Feb 2020 to Feb 2075
Grant Heights: 13 units at 45 percent AMI Original Term:
CTCAC original 2002 +14 units at 50 percent AMI 55 years No change
tax-credits . . .......... -- 27 units restricted 2002 to 2057
Grant Heights I1: Estimated Term:
CTCAC estimated 13 units at 45 percent AMI 55 years
proposed +28 units at 60 percent AMI Feb 2020
tax-credits allocation . . . . $5,209,410 | 41 units restricted n/a to Feb 2075
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FISCAL CONSIDERATIONS

No Housing Commission new direct cash loan funds are proposed with this report’s actions. Under this
report’s proposal, the to-be-formed limited partnership will be providing a 50 percent pay down of the
Housing Commission’s existing Grant Heights outstanding loan amount at escrow closing/bond
issuance.

Estimated funding sources:
Bond Issuance Fee - $22,500 (.0025 bond issuer fee x $9,000,000)

Estimated funding uses:
Rental Housing Finance Program Administration - $22,500

Approval of the bond inducement and TEFRA resolutions does not commit the Housing Authority to
issue the bonds. The bonds would not constitute a debt of the City. If bonds are ultimately issued for the
development, the bonds will not financially obligate the City, the Housing Authority, nor the Housing
Commission because security for the repayment of the bonds will be limited to specific private revenue
sources of the development. Neither the faith and credit nor the taxing power of the City, or the Housing
Authority, would be pledged to the payment of the bonds. The co-developers are responsible for the
payment of all costs under the financing, including the Housing Commission’s .0025 Bond amount issuer
fee (estimated at $22,500 with a $9,000,000 Bond issue) and the Housing Commission’s ongoing annual
bonds administration fee (estimated as $10,000 at permanent financing conversion), as well as the
Housing Commission’s Bond Counsel and Financial Advisor fees.

Estimated Development Schedule
The estimated development timeline is as follows.

Milestones Estimated Dates
e Housing Authority preliminary actions consideration e October 1, 2019
e City Council IRS-required TEFRA hearing e October 1, 2019
e CDLAC bond application & CTCAC tax credit application e October 11, 2019
e CDLAC bond & CTCAC tax credit allocation meetings e December 11, 2019
e Housing Commission proposed final bond authorization e January 2020
e Housing Authority proposed final bond authorization e January 2020
e Estimated bond issuance and escrow closing e February 2020
e Estimated start of rehabilitation e February 2020
e Estimated completion of rehabilitation e June 2020

STATEMENT FOR PUBLIC DISCLOSURE
The co-developers Statements for Public Disclosure are at Attachments 7 and 8.

COMMUNITY PARTICIPATION and PUBLIC OUTREACH EFFORTS
The co-developers anticipate taking informational presentations to the two community planning groups
in September 2019.

KEY STAKEHOLDERS and PROJECTED IMPACTS
Stakeholders include: Urban League and SDCHC as the co-developers, residents of the Grant Heights
Apartments and the Winona Apartments, the Southeastern San Diego community, the Mid-City
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community, and the Housing Commission as a lender. The property rehabilitation is expected to have a
positive impact on the community because it will preserve and improve existing affordable housing.

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW

The proposed rehabilitation is categorically exempt from the requirements of the California
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to Section 15301 of the State CEQA Guidelines because
Grant Heights and Winona are existing facilities and the proposed actions do not involve expansion of
the existing use. The project meets the criteria set forth in CEQA Section 15301(a), which allows for
exterior and interior alterations of existing facilities. Processing under the National Environmental
Policy Act (NEPA) is not required as there are no federal funds involved with this action.

Respectfully submitted, Approved by,

JG B S T

J.P. Correia Jeff Davis

Sr. Real Estate Project Manager Executive Vice President & Chief of Staff
Real Estate Division San Diego Housing Commission

Attachments: 1) Development Summary
2) Site Maps
3) Rehabilitation Scope of Work Summaries
A) Grant Heights
B) Winona
4) Organization Chart
5) Co-developers’ Project Pro Forma
6) Multifamily Housing Revenue Bond Program
7) Developer’s Disclosure Statement: Urban League
8) Developer’s Disclosure Statement: SDCHC

Hard copies are available for review during business hours at the security information desk in the main
lobby and at the fifth floor reception desk of the San Diego Housing Commission offices at 1122
Broadway, San Diego, CA 92101 and at the Office of the San Diego City Clerk, 202 C Street, San
Diego, CA 92101. You may also review complete docket materials in the “Governance & Legislative
Affairs” section of the San Diego Housing Commission website at www.sdhc.org.


http://www.sdhc.org/

ATTACHMENT 1 - DEVELOPMENT SUMMARY

Table 1 —Development Details

Addresses

Grant Heights: 2651-2663 J Street, San Diego
Winona: 3845 Winona Avenue, San Diego

Council Districts

Grant Heights: 8
Winona: 9

Community Plan Areas

Grant Heights: Southeastern San Diego Community Plan and
Grant Hill Historic District (Grant Hill neighborhood).
Winona: Mid-City Communities Plan (City Heights

neighborhood).

Co-developers

Urban League of San Diego County (Urban League) and
San Diego Community Housing Corporation.

Development Type Acquisition with rehabilitation.

Construction Type Type V

Parking Type Grant Heights: 28 parking surface spaces.

(42 spaces total) Winona: 14 parking spaces (two surface and 12 tuck-under garage
spaces).

Housing Type Multifamily

Lot Sizes Grant Heights: .58 acres, 25,265 square feet.

Winona: .31 acres, 13,504 square feet.

Units (42-units total)

Grant Heights: 27-units affordable, plus one manager’s unit.
Winona: 14-units affordable, no manager’s unit.

Density Grant Heights: 48.3 dwelling units per acre (28 units + .58 acres).
Winona: 24.1 dwelling units per acre (14 units + .31 acres).

Affordable Unit Mix Grant Heights: 10 one-bedrooms (545 to 617 sq. ft.),
17 two-bedrooms (741 to 743 sq. ft.), and one manager’s unit.
Winona: 9 one-bedrooms (533 sq. ft.), 4 two-bedrooms (693 to 939 sq.
ft.), 1 three-bedroom (936 sq. ft.), and no manager’s unit.

Gross Building Area Grant Heights: 19,496 square feet.

(28,422 sq. ft. total) Winona: 8,926 square feet.

Net Rentable Area Grant Heights: 18,646 square feet.

(27,397 sq. fi. total)

Winona: 8,751 square feet.

-Page 1 of 3-




Table 2 - Development Team Summary

ROLE FIRM/CONTACT
Owner/Borrower To-be-formed tax credit limited
Managing General Partner (.01 percent) partnership

Administrative General Partner Urban League

Tax Credit Investor/Limited Partner (99.99 SDCHC

percent) To be selected

Developers Urban League and SDCHC
Architect Basis Architecture & Consulting

Property Management

To be selected by the co-developers

General Contractor

To be selected

Relocation Consultant

Overland Pacific & Cutler Inc.

Construction/Permanent Lender

To be selected

Table 3 — Estimated Permanent Sources and Uses

Financing Sources Amounts Financing Uses Amounts Per Unit
Acquisition: Building $8,980,000
Permanent loan (Multifamily Land + 810,000
Housing Revenue Bonds) $3,289,000 Total acquisition $9,790,000 $9,790,000 | $233,095
Housing Commission Construction costs $2,872,800
carry back loan on Contingency + 287.280
Grant Heights original financing 668,640 | Total construction $3,160,080 3,160,080 75,240
Operating income during construction 75,000 | Financing costs 940,174 22,385
Operating reserve transfer 125,000 | Reserves 256,858 6,116
Seller (Urban Housing)
contribution/carryback 5,547,721 | Other soft costs 599,182 14,266
Seller (SDCHC) carry back financing 1,441,539 | Developer fee 1,980,000 47,143
Deferred developer fee 580,000 | Permits & Fees 63,000 1,500
4 percent tax credits equity 5,211,394 | Relocation costs 149,000 3,548
Total Development Cost $16,938,294 | Total Development Cost (TDC) | $16,938,294 | $403,293
Table 4 - Key Performance Indicators

Development Cost Per Unit $16,938,294 + 42 units = | $403,293

Housing Commission Subsidy Per Unit $668,640 42 units =| $15,920

Acquisition/Land Cost Per Unit $9,790,000 + 42 units = | $233,095

Gross Building Square Foot Hard Cost

(combined for two sites) $3,160,080 + 28,422 sq. ft. = $111

Net Rentable Square Foot Hard Cost

(combined for two sites) $3,160,080 +27,397 sq. ft. = $115

-Page 2 of 3-




Table 5 - Comparable Development Projects

Gross Hard
New Construction Unit Mix Total Cost Per | HC Subsidy | Cost Per
Project Name Year | Construction | Units | Development Cost Unit Per Unit Sq. Ft.
Proposed 19 ones, 21 $16,938,294
Subject — Grant | 2019 | fovliree | 4 (no prevailing | $403,293 | $15,920 $111
. manager
Hts./Winona wage)
Harbor View 2018 24 twos, 60 $12,096,464 $201,608 $0 $39
35 threes, (no prev. wage)
+ | manager
Parkside 2018 | 5 Oﬂsesi 29 twos, 40 $10,668,798 $266,720 548,556 $97
threes, o
£ 1 manager (no prev. wage)
Casa Puleta 2017 111 t“’OSf 62? 54 $10,797,804 $328,691 $0 $28
threes, ours, o
+ 1 manager (no prev. wage)
Juniper Gardens 2012 lzg thOS, 40 $12,260,064 $306,502 $71,103 --
threes o
+ 1 manager {no prev. wage)
Knox Glen 2012 l 9 “Vfﬁi ?0 54 $10,398,826 $192,571 $49,809 --
threes, ours
+ 1 manager (no prev. wage)
Table 6 — Affordability & Monthly Estimated Rent Table
CTCAC
Unit Type AMI | Units | Gross Rents
Grant Heights: 1-bedroom, 1 bath (550 square feet) 45% 6 $902
Grant Heights: 2-bedrooms, 1 bath (721-743 square feet) | 45% 7 $1,083
Subtotal 45% AMI Units - 13 ==
Grant Heights: 1-bedroom, 1 bath (545-617 square feet) 50% 4 $1,003
Grant Heights: 2-bedrooms, 1 bath (721-743 square feet) | 50% 10 $1,203
Winona: 1-bedroom, 1 bath (553 square feet) 50% 9 $1,003
Winona: 2-bedrooms, 1 bath (693-939 square feet) 50% 4 $1,203
Winona 3-bedrooms, 1 ' baths (936 square feet) 50% I $1,391
Subtotal 50% AMI Units . -~ | 22 @
2-bedroom Manager’s Unit (721 square feet) - 1 -
Total Units 42

~Page 3 of 3-
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ATTACHMENT 2B - GRANT HEIGHTS MAPS
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ATTACHMENT 2C - WINONA MAPS
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ATTACHMENT 2C — WINONA MAPS continued
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ASSESSOR'S MAP
BOOK 471 PAGE 62
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This map/plat is being furnished as an aid in locating the herein described Land in relation to adjoining Streets, natural boundaries and other]
land, and is not a survey of the land depicted. Except to the extent a policy of title insurance is expressly modified by endorsement, if any,
the Company does not insure dimensions, distances, location of easements, acreage or other matters shown thereon.
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ATTACHMENT 3A
GRANT HEIGHTS REHABILIATION SCOPE OF WORK SUMMARY
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ATTACHMENT 4 — ORGANIZATION CHART
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ATTACHMENT 5 — CO-DEVELOPERS’ PROJECT PRO FORMA

Grant Heights & Winona Apartments

Modeling Assumption Overview

Physical Details ~ Qutstanding Financing ~

Project

Hypothetical Valuation

L Qutstanding |+ Qutstanding
QCT or DDA
| ‘¢ Principal i

- -Quistanding
SDCHC

Principal &
interest -

“8DHC 1. - SDHC Interest
; :

125,000

Grant Heights 2661 J Street Yes 867,279 470,000 1,337,279
|Winona 3845 Winona Avenue 14 Yes - - - -
Totals 42 867,279 470,000 1,337,279 125,000

Schedule

Pre Construction Start Date 2/11/2018

Pre Construction Period (Days) 344

Construction Period Start 112172020

Construction Period Schedule (Days) 180

Construction Period End 711972020

Conversion Pericd (Days) 180

Conversion 1/156/2021

Total Days 704

Financing Sources - Construction and Permanent Period

Sources of Financing- Construction Pariod

Private Activity Bends

Low Income Housing Tax Credits

$an Diego Housing Commission
Seller Contribution/Carryback-ULSDC
Seller Carryback Note- SDCHC
Deferred Developer Fee

Reserve Transfer

Operating income During Construction
Total

8,500,000
781,709
668,640

4,398,435

1,441,538
650,000
125,000

75,000
16,640,322

Sources of Financing - Permanent Perioz

Private Activity Bonds

Low Income Housing Tax Credits

San Diego Housing Commission
Seller Contribution/Carryback-ULSDC
Seiter Carryback Note- SDCHC
Deferred Develaper Fee

Reserve Transfer

Operating Income During Construction
Total

Pay In Schedules: Equity ~ Deferred Costs ~ Daveloper Fee

3,288,000
5,211,394
668,640
5,547,721
1.441,538
580,000
125,000
75,000
16,938,293

Costs Deferred Untit Conversion

Cash Developer Fee Pay-In Schedule

Replacement Reserve Transfer 125,000 Developer Fee 1,880,000

LIHTC Equity at Closing 15% Closing 50%

LIHTC Equity at Construction Completion 80% Completion/Certificate of Occupancy 45%
Conversion/8609 5%

Relocation

Relocation Consultant Cost- Relocation Plan/Coordination/Benefits $148,000

Permanent Relocation Assumption Zero- LURA's for both projects

Permanent Relocation Negotiated Settiement Amount Zero- LURA's for both projects

Temporary Relocation Costs ~2-weeks at $2000 stipend per unit

General Underwriting

Underwriting

interest Rate 5.25% Operating Expenses (Per Unit) $6,750

Term (Years) 35 Reptacement Reserve (Per Unit) $350

DSCR 1.15 Income Escalator 2.0%

Tax Credit Pricing $0.94 Expense Escalator 3.0%

Applicable Fraction 100% Vacancy Factor Year 1 5.0%

Annual Issuer Fee 0.125% Vacancy Factor Year 2+ 5.0%

Bond Issuance Amt. 8,500,000 LP Asset Management Fee $5,000

Construction int. Rate 4.75% GP Asset Management Fee $20,000

~Page 1 of 9-



Sources & Usevé, of Funds Summary

SOURCES USES
Private Activity Bonds $ 8,600,000 | Acquisition $ 9,780,000
LIHTC 3 781,709 { Construction $ 3,160,080
San Diego Housing Commission $ 668,640 | Building Permit Fees $ 63,000
Seller Contribution/Carryback-ULSDC $ 4,398,435 | Architect & Engineer 3 198,500
Seller Carryback- SDCHC 3 1,441,539 | Consultant Fees $ 237,500
Deferred Developer Fee $ 650,000 | Title/Tax/Insurance $ 104,522
Reserve Transfer $ 125,000 | Syndication $ 50,000
Operating Income During Construction $ 75,000 | Marketing/Furnishing $ 40,000
Soft Cost Contingency $ 150,000
Relocation $ 84,000
Developer Fee $ 1,980,000
TCAC & CDLAC Fees $ 87,220
Financing Costs $ 475,000
Bond Issuance $ 220,500
TOTAL SOURCES $ 16,640,322 | TOTAL USES $ 16,640,322

SOURCES USES
Private Activity Bonds $ 3,289,000 | Acquisition $ 9,790,000
Low Income Housing Tax Credits 3 5,211,394 | Construction 3 3,160,080
San Diego Housing Commission $ 668,640 | Building Permit Fees $ 63,000
Seller Contribution/Carryback-ULSDC 3 5,547,721 | Architect & Engineer $ 198,500
Seller Carryback - SDCHC $ 1,441,539 | Consultant Fees $ 237,500
Developer Fee Contribution $ 580,000 | Title/Tax/Insurance $ 104,522
Reserve Transfer $ 125,000 | Syndication $ 50,000
Operating Income During Construction $ 75,000 | Marketing/Furnishing $ 40,000
Soft Cost Contingency $ 150,000
Relocation $ 84,000
Developer Fee $ 1,980,000
TCAC & CDLAC Fees $ 87,220
Construction Origination $ 475,000
Permanent Financing Costs $ 41,113
Reserves $ 256,858
Bond Issuance $ 220,500
TOTAL SOURCES $ 16,938,293 | TOTAL USES $ 16,938,293
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Developmenl Budget

USE OF FUNDS

TOTAL ELIGIBLE COSTS PER UNIT
ACQUISITION COSTS
fa~i- .
Land $ 810,000 e ESI 19,286
Buildings $ 8,980,000 8880000 8 213,810
Total Acquisition Costs $ 9,796,000 8,930,000 $ 233,095
CONSTRUCTION
General Contract s 2,520,000 $ 2,520,000 $ 60,000
General Requirements $ 126,000 $ 126,000 S 3,000
Contractor Overhead $ 50400 S 50,400 S 1,200
Conlractor Profit 3 176,400 176,400 S 4,200
Subtotal Construction $ 2,872,800 § 2872800 $ 68,400
Contingency $ 287280 § 287.280 $ 6,840
Total Construction Costs $ 3,160,080 3§ 3,150,080 $ 75,240
BUILDING PERMITS FEES, & PUBLIC WORKS
Planning and Building Permits $ 63,000 § 63,000 $ 1,500
Subtotal Building Permits & Public Works $ 63,000 § 63,000 S 1.500
ARCHITECT & ENGINEER
Architect $ 150,000 § 150,000 3 3571
Engineering $ 35000 S 35000 s 833
Energy Audil 3 13500 8§ 13.500 8 i
Total Architect & Engineering Fees $ 198,506 § 198,500 § 4,726
CONSULTANT FEES
Appraisal $ 10,000 § 10,000 § 238
Market Study $ 7500 § 7,500 S 179
Relocation Consultant 3 65,000 § 65000 $ 1,548
Environmental Phase 1 3 2500 § 2500 S 60
Physical Needs Assessment 3 5000 S 5,000 § 119
Construction Management $ 50,000 S 50,000 § 1,190
Financial Consuttant $ 65000 $ 85,000 & 1,548
Accounling & Cost Centification $ 30,000 § 30000 § 714
Other Fees/Reproduction Mailings $ 2500 $ 2500 § 60
Total Consuitant Fees $ 237,500 § 237,500 S 5,655
5CROW & TITLE
Acquisition & Construction s 20,000 i§ 478
Conversion $ 10.000 $ 238
Total Title/Recording s 30,000 $ 714
$ -
PROPERTY TAX 13 -
Praperty Tax $ 5000 S 5000 $ 119
Total Property Tax $ 5000 $ 5,000 $ 119
INSURANCE & BONDING
Insurance $ 33,181
Performance Bond $ 36341 8 36341 S 885
Total Insurance $ §9,522 § 36,341 5 1,685
$ -
MISCELANEOOUS LEGAL s -
Tax Credil Syndication $ 50,000 Frhs 1,190
Total Legal Fees $ 50,060 - $ 1,180
MARKETING/FURNISHING
Marketing Properly/Property Mgmt. Start-Up $ 15,000 357
Furnishing $ 25,000 595
Total Marketing Fees $ 40,000 952
COSTCONTINGENCY e
Soft Cost Contingency S 150.000 _$ 150,000 S 3.571
Total Soft Cost Contingency s 150,000 $ 150,000 5 3,571
RELOCATION COSTS
Temporary Relocation Costs $ 84,000 2,000
Permanent Relocation Subsidy 3 - -
Tota! Tenant Relocation Fees $ 84,000 2,000
RESERVES
Lease Up Reserves $ - -
QOperating Reserves $ 256 858 8,116
Total Lease-Up Reserves $ 256,858 6,116
CDLAC & TCAC FEES
CDLAC & TCAC FEES $ 70,000 $ 1,667
Monitoring Fees $ 17,220 $ 410
Total YCAC Fees $ 87,220 § . $ 2,077
s .
CONSTRUCTION FINANCE COSTS s N
Construction Interest $ 380,000 $ 312,000 § 9,286
Origination $ 85000 $ 85,000 S 2,024
Permanent Origination S 41,113 -Ean 3
Total Construction Finance Costs $ 516,113 § 397,000 § 12,288
BOND ISSUANCE
Attorney Cosls $ 170,000 $ 4,048
SDCHC Attorney Costs $ 5,000 $ 119
Issuance Fee $ 45.500 $ 1,083
Yotal issuance Fee s 220,500 $ 5,250
DEVELOPER FEE
Developer Fee s 1,980,000 1,980,000 § 47,143
Developer Fee $ 1,980,000 § 1,980,000 $ 47,143
$ -
[TOTAL PROJECT COSTS $ 16,938,283 $  15,207421 s 203,293 |
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I g L mi gt 8 IAT:
Grant Heights & Winona Apa

Rent & Expense Assumnptions

UNMIT MIX BY A53ET

A BR@ 4 BR @ 50% BR@ 4 BR @ 50 BR @ 50 anage 0
Grant Heights 6 4 7 10 Q 1 28
Winona - 9 - 4 1 0 14

Totals 6 13 7 14 1 1 42

AREA AN (PMSA SD) _

AME 35 40

30% . \ 30,4985 32,100 g f

35% 26,215 28,088 E 31,833 33,705 35,578 37,450 38,955 40,460 41,965 43,470
40% 29,960 32,100 34,240 36,380 38,520 40,660 42,800 44,520 46,240 47,960 49,680
45% 33,705 36,113 38,520 40,928 43,335 45,743 48,150 50,085 52,020 53,955 55,890
50% 37.450 40,125 42,800 45,475 48,150 50,825 53,500 55,650 57,800 59,950 62,100
55% 41,185 44,138 47,080 50,023 52,965 55,908 58,850 61,215 63,580 65,945 68,310
60% 44,940 48,150 51,360 54,570 57.780 60,990 64,200 66,780 69,360 71,940 74,520

Par HUD Notice 2018

Space Heating (Electric

Caoking (Electric} 7 " 22

Other Electric 27 38 48
Total Electric 56 75 29

647

846
886 1008
1113 1252

1128
1292

1369
1669

1 Bedroom HAP

1 Bedroom HAP

1 Bedroom HAP
2 Bedroom HAP

2 Bedroom HAP

2 Bedroom HAP

2 Bedroom HAP- Mgr

Studio

1 Bedroom
2 Bedroom
3 Bedroom

Vinona Apartments T

. 50% HA . 50%
4,482 8,523
13,330 4,512
- 1,292

. MONTHLY.

ANNUAL

19,617 235,404
27,168 325,992

1,292 15,504
48,075 576,900

ADDITIONAL INCOME

APPLICABLE FRACTION

Misc Tenant Fees @ $5 pupm 2,520 Units: 42
Tennant Contributions - Affordable Units: 41
Other- Laundry Income @ $8.00 pupm 4,032 Manager 1
TOTAL 6,552 Applicable Fraction 100%
LOAN SIZING
Loan Sizing Gross Income 576,900
Rate 5.25% Less Vacancy (28,845)
Tem 35 Other Income 6,552
DSCR 1.15 Total Income 554,607
Loan Sizing Vacancy Factor 5.0% Operating Expense (283,490)
Annual Expenses 34,440 Resident Services (10,000)
Annual lssuer Fee 10,000 Annual Issuer Fee (10,000)
Annual Reserves 14,700 Reserves 14,700,
NOt 236,417
Present Value $3,289.850
Round To 3.233.08
PMT $205,527
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ATTACHMENT 6
HOUSING COMMISSION MULTIFAMILY HOUSING REVENUE
BOND PROGRAM SUMMARY

General Description: The multifamily housing bond program provides below-market
financing (based on bond interest being exempt from income tax) for developers willing
to set aside a percentage of project units as affordable housing. Multifamily housing
revenue bonds are also known as "private activity bonds" because the projects are owned
by private entities, often including nonprofit sponsors and for-profit investors.

Bond Issuer: Housing Authority of the City of San Diego. There is no direct legal liability
to the City, the Housing Authority or the Housing Commission in connection with the
issuance or repayment of bonds. There is no pledge of the City's faith, credit or taxing
power nor of the Housing Authority's faith and credit. The bonds do not constitute a
general obligation of the issuer because security for repayment of the bonds is limited to
specific private revenue sources, such as project revenues. The developer is responsible
for the payment of costs of issuance and all other costs under each financing.

Affordability: Minimum requirement is that at least 20% of the units are affordable at
50% of Area Median Income (AMI). Alternatively, a minimum of 10% of the units may
be affordable at 50% AMI with an additional 30% of the units affordable at 60% AMI.
The Housing Commission requires that the affordability restriction be in place for a
minimum of 15 years. Due to the combined requirements of state, local, and federal
funding sources, projects financed under the Bond Program are normally affordable for
30-55 years and often provide deeper affordability levels than the minimum levels
required under the Bond Program.

Rating: Generally "AAA" or its equivalent with a minimum rating of "A" or, under
conditions that meet IRS and Housing Commission requirements, bonds may be unrated
for private placement with institutional investors (typically, large banks). Additional
security is normally achieved through the provision of outside credit support ("credit
enhancement") by participating financial institutions that underwrite the project loans and
guarantee the repayment of the bonds. The credit rating on the bonds reflects the credit
quality of the credit enhancement provider.

Approval Process:

» Inducement Resolution: The bond process is initiated when the issuer (Housing
Authority) adopts an "Inducement Resolution” to establish the date from which
project costs may be reimbursable from bond proceeds (if bonds are later issued)
and to authorize staff to work with the financing team to perform a due diligence
process. The Inducement Resolution does not represent any commitment by the
Housing Commission, Housing Authority, or the developer to proceed with the
financing.
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= TEFRA Hearing and Resolution (Tax Equity and Fiscal Responsibility Act of
1982): To assure that projects making use of tax-exempt financing meet
appropriate governmental purposes and provide reasonable public benefits, the
IRS Code requires that a public hearing be held and that the issuance of bonds be
approved by representatives of the governmental unit with jurisdiction over the
area in which the project is located (City Council). This process does not make
the City financially or legally liable for the bonds or for the project.

[Note: Members of the City Council may be asked to take two actions at this stage
in the bond process---one in their capacity as the City Council (TEFRA hearing
and resolution) and another as the Housing Authority (bond inducement). Were
the issuer (Housing Authority) a more remote entity, the TEFRA hearing and
resolution would be the only opportunity for local elected officials to weigh in on
the project.]

= Application for Bond Allocation: The issuance of these "private activity bonds"
(bonds for projects owned by private developers, including projects with nonprofit
sponsors and for-profit investors) requires an allocation of bond issuing authority
from the State of California. To apply for an allocation, an application approved
by the Housing Authority and supported by an adopted inducement resolution and
by proof of credit enhancement (or bond rating) must be filed with the California
Debt Limit Allocation Committee (CDLAC). in addition, evidence of a TEFRA
hearing and approval must be submitted prior to the CDLAC meeting.

= Final Bond Approval: The Housing Authority retains absolute discretion over the
issuance of bonds through adoption of a final resolution authorizing the issuance.
Prior to final consideration of the proposed bond issuance, the project must
comply with all applicable financing, affordability, and legal requirements and
undergo all required planning procedures/reviews by local planning groups, etc.

= Funding and Bond Administration: All monies are held and accounted for by a
third party trustee. The trustee disburses proceeds from bond sales to the developer
in order to acquire and/or construct the housing project. Rental income used to
make bond payments is collected from the developer by the trustee and disbursed
to bond holders. If rents are insufficient to make bond payments, the trustee
obtains funds from the credit enhancement provider. No monies are transferred
through the Housing Commission or Housing Authority, and the trustee has no
standing to ask the issuer for funds.

Bond Disclosure: The offering document (typically a Preliminary Offering Statement or
bond placement memorandum) discloses relevant information regarding the project, the
developer, and the credit enhancement provider. Since the Housing Authority is not
responsible in any way for bond repayment, there are no financial statements or
summaries about the Housing Authority or the City that are included as part of the offering
document. The offering document includes a paragraph that states that the
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Housing Authority is a legal entity with the authority to issue multifamily housing bonds
and that the Housing Commission acts on behalf of the Housing Authority to issue the
bonds. The offering document also includes a paragraph that details that there is no
pending or threatened litigation that would affect the validity of the bonds or curtail the
ability of the Housing Authority to issue bonds. This is the extent of the disclosure
required of the Housing Authority, Housing Commission, or the City. However, it is the
obligation of members of the Housing Authority to disclose any material facts known
about the project, not available to the general public, which might have an impact on the
viability of the project.
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ATTACHMENT 7
SAN DIEGO URBAN LEAGUE OF SAN DIEGO COUNTY
Housine DEVELOPER’S DISCLOSURE STATEMENT

COMMISSION

DEVELOPERS/CONSULTANTS/SELLERS/CONTRACTORS/
ENTITY SEEKING GRANT/BORROWERS
(Collectively referred to as "CONTRACTOR" herein)
Statement for Public Disclosure

1. Name of CONTRACTOR: Urban League San Diego County

Address and ZIP Code: 4305 University Avenue Suite 360, San Diego CA 92105
Telephone Number: 619-266-6247

Name of Principal Contact for CONTRACTOR: Ray King

Federal Identification Number or Social Security Number of CONTRACTOR: 95-1772854

If the CONTRACTOR is not an individual doing business under his own name, the CONTRACTOR has the status
indicated below and is organized or operating under the laws of California as:

A

[] A corporation (Attach Articles of Incorporation)
DX} A nonprofit or charitable institution or corporation. (Attach copy of Articles of Incorporation and documentary
evidence verifying current valid nonprofit or charitable status)
] A partnership known as: ______
(Name)
Check one:
[] General Partnership (Attach Statement of General Partnership)
[] Limited Partnership (Attach Certificate of Limited Partnership)
] A business association or a joint venture known as: _____
(Attach joint venture or business association agreement)
[] A Federal, State or local government or instrumentality thereof.

[] Other (explain)

7. Ifthe CONTRACTOR is not an individual or a government agency or instrumentality, give date of organization:
1953

8.  Provide names, addresses, telephone numbers, title of position (if any) and nature and extent of the interest of the current
officers, principal members, shareholders, and investors of the CONTRACTOR, other than a government agency or
instrumentality, as set forth below:

a. If the CONTRACTOR is a corporation, the officers, directors or trustees, and each stockholder owning more

than 10 percent of any class of stock.
b. Ifthe CONTRACTOR is a nonprofit or charitable institution or corporation, the members who constitute the
board of trustees or board of directors or similar governing body.

Please see attached list of board members and officers




10.

11

c. Ifthe CONTRACTOR is a partnership, each partner, whether a general or limited, and either the percent of
interest or a description of the character and extent of interest.

d. If the CONTRACTOR is a business association or a joint venture, each participant and either the percent
of interest or a description of the character and extent of interest.

e. If the CONTRACTOR is some other entity, the officers, the members of the governing body, and each
person having an interest of more than 10 percent.(Attach extra sheet if necessary)

Name and Address Posm(?n Tltle (if any) and percent of m?erest or
description of character and extent of interest

Name: n/a
Address:

Name:
Address:

Name:
Address:

Has the makeup as set forth in Item 8(a) through 8(e) changed within the last twelve (12) months? If yes, please explain
in detail.
No

Is it anticipated that the makeup as set forth in Item 8(a) through 8(e) will change within the next twelve (12) months?
If yes, please explain in detail.
No

Provide name, address, telephone number, and nature and extent of interest of each person or entity (not named in
response to Item 8) who has a beneficial interest in any of the shareholders or investors named in response to Item 8,
which gives such person or entity more than a computed 10 percent interest in the CONTRACTOR (for example,
more than 20 percent of the stock in a corporation that holds 50 percent of the stock of the CONTRACTOR, or more
than 50 percent of the stock in the corporation that holds 20 percent of the stock of the CONTRACTOR):

Position Title (if any) and percent of interest or

Name and Address description of character and extent of interest

Name: N/A
Address:

Name:
Address:

Name:
Address:




12.

13.

14.

Names, addresses and telephone numbers (if not given above) of officers and directors or trustees of any corporation
or firm listed under Item 8 or Item 11 above:

Position Title (if any) and percent of interest or

Name and Add . .
" ress description of character and extent of interest

Name:
Address:

Name:
Address:

Name:
Address:

Is the CONTRACTOR a subsidiary of or affiliated with any other corporation or corporations, any other firm or any
other business entity or entities of any nature? If yes, list each such corporation, firm or business entity by name and
address, specify its relationship to the CONTRACTOR, and identify the officers and directors or trustees common to
the CONTRACTOR and such other corporation, firm or business entity.

Name and Address Relationship to CONTRACTOR
Name: National Urban League Affiliate
Address: 80 Pine Street, 9" Floor
New York, NY 10005
Name:
Address:

Name:
Address:

Provide the financial condition of the CONTRACTOR as of the date of the statement and for a period of twenty-four
(24) months prior to the date of its statement, as reflected in the attached financial statements, including, but not
necessarily limited to, profit and loss statements and statements of financial position.

On file with the San Diego Housing Commission

If funds for the development/project are to be obtained from sources other than the CONTRACTOR's own funds,
provide a statement of the CONTRACTOR's plan for financing the development/project:

The contractor proposes to assign an existing Housing Commission loan to a to-be-formed tax-credit limited
partnership, multifamily housing revenue bonds, conventional loan, seller contribution, seller carryback loan,
developer fee contribution, existing reserves and income during construction.

Provide sources and amount of cash available to CONTRACTOR to meet equity requirements of the proposed
undertaking:



The Contractor is utilizing local public funding, low income housing tax credits, private activity bonds to finance the
project. Urban League San Diego will be partnering with the San Diego Community Housing Corporation which will
fund the majority of predevelopment expenses.

a. In banks/savings and loans: N/A
Name:
Address: -
Amount;

b. By loans from affiliated or associated corporations or firms: N/A
Name:
Address:
Amount: $

c. By sale of readily salable assets/including marketable securities:

Description Market Value (8) Mortgages or Liens ($)

17. Names and addresses of bank references, and name of contact at each reference:

Name and Address Contact Name
Name: California Bank & Trust Steve Herman
Address: 1900 Avenue of the Stars, Suite 2350
Los Angeles, CA 90067
Name: Citizens Business Bank Larry Reed

Address; 460 Sierra Madre Villa Avenue
Pasadena, CA 91107

Name: Bank of America Tosha Blackshear

Address: 7700 El Camino Real, Suite 204
Carlsbad, CA 92009

18. Has the CONTRACTOR or any of the CONTRACTOR's officers or principal members, shareholders or investors, or
other interested parties been adjudged bankrupt, either voluntary or involuntary, within the past 10 years?

[]Yes X No

If yes, give date, place, and under what name.



19. Has the CONTRACTOR or anyone referred to above as "principals of the CONTRACTOR" been convicted of any
felony within the past 10 years?

[]Yes X No

If yes, give for each case (1) date, (2) charge, (3) place, (4) court, and (5) action taken. Attach any explanation deemed
necessary.

20. List undertakings (including, but not limited to, bid bonds, performance bonds, payment bonds and/or improvement
bonds) comparable to size of the proposed project which have been completed by the CONTRACTOR, including
identification and brief description of each project, date of completion, and amount of bond, whether any legal action
has been taken on the bond: N/A

Date of Amount of
Type of Bond Project Description Completion Bond Action on Bond

21. If the CONTRACTOR, or a parent corporation, a subsidiary, an affiliate, or a principal of the CONTRACTOR is to
participate in the development as a construction contractor or builder, provide the following information: N/A

a. Name and addresses of such contractor or builder: N/A

Name and Address Affiliation

Name:
Address:

Name:
Address:

Name:
Address:

b. Has such contractor or builder within the last 10 years ever failed to qualify as a responsible bidder, refused to
enter into a contract after an award has been made, or failed to complete a construction or development contract?

[] Yes [INo

If yes, please explain, in detail, each such instance:



c. Total amount of construction or development work performed by such contractor or builder during the last three
(3) years: $

General description of such work:

List each project, including location, nature of work performed, name, address of the owner of the project, bonding
companies involved, amount of contract, date of commencement of project, date of completion, state whether any
change orders were sought, amount of change orders, was litigation commenced concerning the project, including
a designation of where, when and the outcome of the litigation. (Attach extra sheet if necessary)

Project Name
Project Owner
t ti
Contact Information Name Address
Project Location
Project Details
Bonding Company
Involved Name Amount of Contract
Change Order Details
Change Order Cost
Litigation Details
Location/Date Outcome Details
d.  Construction contracts or developments now being performed by such contractor or builder:
: : _ tob
Identification of Contract or Location Amount Date to be
Development Completed
e.  Outstanding construction-contract bids of such contractor or builder:

Awarding Agency Amount Date Opened




22.

23.

24.

25.

26.

Provide a detailed and complete statement regarding equipment, experience, financial capacity, and other resources
available to such contractor or builder for the performance of the work involved in the proposed project, specifying
particularly the qualifications of the personnel, the nature of the equipment, and the general experience of the
contractor:

The Urban League San Diego County team brings diverse experience and leadership within the communities the

projects are locate in. In collaboration with the San Diego Community Housing Corporation, the Urban League
San Diego County will assist with public outreach, project coordination and relationship management.

Does any member of the governing body of SDHC, Housing Authority of the City of San Diego ("AUTHORITY™") or
City of San Diego ("CITY"), to which the accompanying proposal is being made or any officer or employee of SDHC,
the AUTHORITY or the CITY who exercises any functions or responsibilities in connection with the carrying out of
the project covered by the CONTRACTOR's proposal, have any direct or indirect personal financial interest in the
CONTRACTOR or in the proposed contractor?

[]Yes X No

If yes, explain:

Statements and other evidence of the CONTRACTOR's qualifications and financial responsibility (other than the
financial statement referred to in Item 8) are attached hereto and hereby made a part hereof as follows:
NA

Is the proposed CONTRACTOR, and/or are any of the proposed subcontractors, currently involved in any
construction-related litigation?

] Yes X No

If yes, explain:

State the name, address and telephone numbers of CONTRACTOR's insurance agent(s) and/or companies for the
following coverage’s. List the amount of coverage (limits) currently existing in each category:

a. General Liability, including Bodily Injury and Property Damage Insurance [Attach certificate of insurance
showing the amount of coverage and coverage period(s)]

Check coverage(s) carried:

X Comprehensive Form

O] Premises - Operations

] Explosion and Collapse Hazard

O Underground Hazard

O Products/Completed Operations Hazard
] Contractual Insurance



28.

29.

l Broad Form Property Damage
'l Independent Contractors
] Personal Injury

b. Automobile Public Liability/Property Damage [Attach certificate of insurance showing the amount of
coverage and coverage period(s)]

Check coverage(s) carried:

X Comprehensive Form
] Owned
] Hired

] Non-Owned

¢. Workers Compensation [Attach certificate of insurance showing the amount of coverage and coverage
period(s)]

d. Professional Liability (Errors and Omissions) [Attach certificate of insurance showing the amount of
coverage and coverage period(s)] N/A

e. Excess Liability [Attach certificate(s) of insurance showing the amount of coverage and coverage period(s)]
N/A

f. Other (Specify) [Attach certificate(s) of insurance showing the amount of coverage and coverage period(s)]
N/A

CONTRACTOR warrants and certifies that it will not during the term of the PROJECT, GRANT, LOAN,
CONTRACT, DEVELOPMENT and/or RENDITIONS OF SERVICES discriminate against any employee, person,
or applicant for employment because of race, age, sexual orientation, marital status, color, religion, sex, handicap, or
national origin. The CONTRACTOR will take affirmative action to ensure that applicants are employed, and that
employees are treated during employment, without regard to their race, age, sexual orientation, marital status, color,
religion, sex, handicap, or national origin. Such action shall include, but not be limited to the following: employment,
upgrading, demotion or termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and selection for training, including
apprenticeship. The CONTRACTOR agrees to post in conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants for
employment, notices to be provided by SDHC setting forth the provisions of this nondiscrimination clause.

The CONTRACTOR warrants and certifies that it will not, without prior written consent of SDHC, engage in any
business pursuits that are adverse, hostile or take incompatible positions to the interests of SDHC, during the term of
the PROJECT, DEVELOPMENT, LOAN, GRANT, CONTRACT and/or RENDITION OF SERVICES.

CONTRACTOR warrants and certifies that no member, Commissioner, Councilperson, officer, or employee of SDHC,
the AUTHORITY and/or the CITY, and no member of the governing body of the locality in which the PROJECT is
situated, no member of the governing body in which SDHC was activated, and no other public official of such locality
or localities who exercises any functions or responsibilities with respect to the assignment of work, has, during his or
her tenure, or will for one (1) year thereafter, have any interest, direct or indirect, in this PROJECT or the proceeds

thereof.



30.

List all citations, orders to cease and desist, stop work orders, complaints, judgments, fines, and penalties received by
or imposed upon CONTRACTOR for safety violations from any and all government entities including but not limited
to, the City of San Diego, County of San Diego, the State of California, the United States of America and any and all
divisions and departments of said government entities for a period of five (5) years prior to the date of this statement.
If none, please state: N/A

Government Entity Making | Date Resolution
Complaint

32.

Has the CONTRACTOR ever been disqualified, removed from or otherwise prevented from bidding on or completing
a federal, state, or local government project because of a violation of law or a safety regulation?

[ ] Yes X No

If yes, please explain, in detail,

Please list all licenses obtained by the CONTRACTOR through the State of California and/or the United States of
America, which are required and/or will be utilized by the CONTRACTOR and/or are convenient to the performance
of the PROJECT, DEVELOPMENT, LOAN, GRANT, CONTRACT, or RENDITION OF SERVICES. State the
name of the governmental agency granting the license, type of license, date of grant, and the status of the license,
together with a statement as to whether the license has ever been revoked: N/A

Government License Description License Number Date Issued Status Revocation
Agency P (Original) (Current) (Yes/No)

33.

34.

Describe in detail any and all other facts, factors or conditions that may adversely affect CONTRACTOR's ability to
perform or complete, in a timely manner, or at all, the PROJECT, CONTRACT, SALES of Real Property to,
DEVELOPMENT, repayment of the LOAN, adherence to the conditions of the GRANT, or performance of consulting
or other services under CONTRACT with SDHC,

N/A

Describe in detail, any and all other facts, factors or conditions that may favorably affect CONTRACTOR's ability to
perform or complete, in a timely manner, or at all, the PROJECT, CONTRACT, DEVELOPMENT, repayment of the
LOAN, adherence to the conditions of the GRANT, or performance of consulting or other services under CONTRACT

with SDHC.



Contractor has been in business for approximately 65-years and has a track record of owning and managing housing
in the City of San Diego. Applicant currently owns one of the subject asset and has extensive history and knowledge
to ensure that the project is completed successfully.

35.  List all CONTRACTS with, DEVELOPMENTS for or with, LOANS with, PROJECTS with, GRANTS from, and
SALES of Real Property to SDHC, AUTHORITY and/or the CITY within the last five (5) years:

Date Entity Involved (Current ds;itus ¢, repaid Dollar Amount
(i.e. City SDHC, etc) urrent, eelth)ueﬂ 5 repal( s ollar Amoun
2/12/02 | SDHC Current 31274210

36.  Within the last five years, has the proposed CONTRACTOR, and/or have any of the proposed subcontractors, been
the subject of a complaint filed with the Contractor's State License Board (CSLB)?

D Yes & No

If yes, explain:

37.  Within the last five years, has the proposed CONTRACTOR, and/or have any of the proposed subcontractors, had a
revocation or suspension of a CONTRACTOR's License?

[ ] Yes X No

If yes, explain:

38. List three local references that would be familiar with your previous construction projects:

1. Name: Ms. Mi Yeong Lee

Address: 1122 Broadway, Suite 300, San Diego

Phone: 619-578-7536

Project Name and Description: Grant Heights
2. Name: Steve Herman

Address: 1900 Avenue of the Stars, Suite 2350, Los Angeles

Phone: 310-407-6181

Project Name and Description: Grant Heights
3. Name: Wilmer Cooks

Address: 12900 4™ Avenue #101, San Diego

Phone: 619-298-9292

Project Name and Description: Grant Heights
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39. Give a brief statement regarding equipment, experience, financial capacity and other resources available to the
CONTRACTOR for the performance of the work involved in the proposed project, specifying particularly the
qualifications of the personnel, the nature of the equipment and the general experience of the CONTRACTOR.

N/A

40. Give the name and experience of the proposed Construction Superintendent.

 Name Experience
TBD Urban League of San Diego County to competitively bid the project to three
qualified general contractors. Name of superintendent not known at this time

CONSENT TO PUBLIC DISCLOSURE BY CONTRACTOR

By providing the "Personal Information", (if any) as defined in Section 1798.3(a) of the Civil Code of the State of California
(to the extent that it is applicable, if at all), requested herein and by seeking a loan from, a grant from, a contract with, the
sale of real estate to, the right to develop from, and/or any and all other entitlements from the SAN DIEGO HOUSING
COMMISSION ("SDHC"), the HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF SAN DIEGO ("AUTHORITY") and/or the
CITY OF SAN DIEGO ("CITY"), the CONTRACTOR consents to the disclosure of any and all "Personal Information" and
of any and all other information contained in this Public Disclosure Statement. CONTRACTOR specifically, knowingly
and intentionally waives any and all privileges and rights that may exist under State and/or Federal Law refating to the public
disclosure of the information contained herein. With respect to "Personal Information," if any, contained herein, the
CONTRACTOR, by executing this disclosure statement and providing the information requested, consents to its disclosure
pursuant to the provisions of the Information Practices Act of 1977, Civil Code Section 1798.24(b). CONTRACTOR is
aware that a disclosure of information contained herein will be made at a public meeting or meetings of SDHC, the
AUTHORITY, and/or the CITY at such times as the meetings may be scheduled. CONTRACTOR hereby consents to the
disclosure of said "Personal Information,” if any, more than thirty (30) days from the date of this statement at the duly
scheduled meeting(s) of SDHC, the AUTHORITY and/or the CITY. CONTRACTOR acknowledges that public disclosure
of the information contained herein may be made pursuant to the provisions of Civil Code Section 1798.24(d).

CONTRACTOR represents and warrants to SDHC, the AUTHORITY and the CITY that by providing the information
requested herein and waiving any and all privileges available under the Evidence Code of the State of California, State and
Federal Law, (to the extent of this disclosure that the information being submitted herein), the information constitutes a
"Public Record” subject to disclosure to members of the public in accordance with the provisions of California Governiment
Section 6250 et seq.

CONTRACTOR specifically waives, by the production of the information disclosed herein, any and all rights that
CONTRACTOR may have with respect to the information under the provisions of Government Code Section 6254 including
its applicable subparagraphs, to the extent of the disclosure herein, as well as all rights of privacy, if any, under the State and
Federal Law.

Executed this 15" day of _May . 2019, at San Diego, California.
CONTRACTOR z{/\ //
By:  RayKing y \/
Signature / ) Q
President & CEQ ‘

Title



CERTIFICATION

The CONTRACTOR, Urban League San Diego County , hereby certifies that this CONTRACTOR's Statement for
Public Disclosure and the attached information/evidence of the CONTRACTOR's qualifications and financial responsibility,
including financial statements, are true and correct to the best of CONTRACTOR's knowledge and belief.

By: _Ray Kmsz / /A’\
Title: Presrdent & CFLQ

Dated: _ 5/15/2019

WARNING: 18 U.S.C. 1001 provides, among other things, that whoever knowingly and willingly makes or uses a
document or writing containing any false, fictitious or fraudulent statement or entry, in any matter within the
jurisdiction or any department or agency of the United States, shall be fined not more than $10,000 or imprisoned

for not more than five years, or both.

JURAT

A notary public or other officer completing this certificate verifies only the identity of the
individual who signed the document to which this certificate is attached, and not the truthfulness,

accuracy, or validity of that document.

State of California

County of gg 7 (‘Dﬁ Q.O\ o

Subscribed and sworn to (or affirmed) before me on this _QD day of { A VN \[ ,20 \ _ﬂ__w
by \2 S n /Y W )’& LAY - ~personally known to me or proved to me on the basis of
\

satisfactory evidence to be the persongx) who appeared before me.

v

. 5 o i Bt

ST CRUZ PEINADO E I~ S
) SR Notary Fublic - Californla

YR Y vt [\‘(‘) w Yol 7 [ CAN N

San Diego County i S
Signature of {}‘01&\ \,
\”‘\A ,)

Commission # 2229405
y Comm. Expires Jan 29, 2027 3

SEAL
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Leaf«Cole, LLP

Certified Public Accountants
A Partnership of Professional Corporations

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Partners
Urban Housing Grant Heights, L.P.
c/o Hallmark Asset Management

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Urban Housing Grant Heights, L.P., FHA Project No.
129-44084, which comprise the balance sheets as of December 31, 2018 and 2017, and the related statements of
operations, changes in partners’ equity (deficit), and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to
the financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation,
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our
audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion,
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

1

2810 Camino Del Rio South, Suite 200, San Diego, California 92108-3820
619.294.7200, 619.294.7077 fax, www.leaf-cole.com, leafcole@leaf-cole.com



To the Partners Page 2
Urban Housing Grant Heights, L.P.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of Urban Housing Grant Heights, L.P., as of December 31, 2018 and 2017, and the results of its operations and its
cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America.

Other Matters
Other Information

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole. The
accompanying supplementary information on pages 16 to 26 is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is
not a required part of the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was
derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial
statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all material respects in relation to the financial
statements as a whole.

Leafzcole LLP

San Diego, California
March 27, 2019



URBAN HOUSING GRANT HEIGHTS, L.P.
F.H.A. PROJECT NO. 129-44084
BALANCE SHEETS
DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017

ASSETS
2018
Investment in Real Estate: (Notes 2 and 5)
Land and land improvements $ 615,019
Buildings 1,918,701
Furnishings 123,319
Less: Accumulated depreciation (1,564,943)
Net Investment in Real Estate 1,092,096
Other Assets: (Notes 2, 3 and 4)
Cash and cash equivalents 73,791
Accounts receivable 6,280
Due from related parties -
Prepaid expenses 2,166
Restricted deposits:
Replacement reserve 88,053
Operating reserve 70,071
Section § reserve -
Tenant security deposits 9,067
Total Other Assets 249,428
TOTAL ASSETS $ 1,341,524
LIABILITIES AND PARTNERS' EQUITY
Liabilities: (Notes 2, 4, 5 and 7)
Mortgages payable, net § 1,294,436
Accrued interest payable - Amortized debt 1,910
Accrued interest payable - Residual receipts debt 406,931
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 50,405
Prepaid rents 1,291
Due to related parties 19,365
Tenant security deposits 9,887
Total Liabilities 1,784,225
Partners' Equity (Deficit) (Note 1 and 6) (442,701)
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND PARTNERS' EQUITY $ 1,341,524

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

2017
$ 615,019
1,918,701
123,319
(1,487,711)
1,169,328

30,934
9,315
75,000
1,935

76,772
63,549
41,244
9,063
307,812

$ 1,477,140

§ 1,306,469
1,983

388,751
25,093

3,904

3,550

9,062
1,738,812

(261,672)

$ 1,477,140



URBAN HOUSING GRANT HEIGHTS, L.P.
F.H.A. PROJECT NO. 129-44084
STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017

Income:
Gross potential rents
Less: Vacarncy loss
Total Rental Income

Interest income
Other income:
Miscellaneous tenant charges
Laundry and vending income
Total Income

Operating Expenses:
Operating and maintenance

Administrative
Utilities
Taxes and insurance
Marketing and leasing
Total Operating Expenses

Net Operating Income Before Partnership

and Financial Expenses

Partnership and Financial Expenses:

Mortgage interest - Residual receipt debt
Mortgage interest - Amortized debt

Partnership management fee

Total Partnership and Financial Expenses

Net (Loss) Income Before Depreciation

Depreciation

NET LOSS

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

$

2018

406,672
(2,409)

404,263

442

4,958
2,148

411,811

198,616
90,782
32,616
16,029

8,660

346,703

65,108

26,408
23,900
19,365

69,673

(4,565)

71,232

(81,797)

$

$

017

398,220

(11,130)

387,090
318

54
2,236

389,698

171,153
91,795
27,813
16,009

1,156

307,926

81,772

26,392
24,755
3,550

54697

27,075

84,720

(57,645)



URBAN HOUSING GRANT HEIGHTS, L.P.

F.H.A. PROJECT NO. 129-44084
STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN PARTNERS’ EQUITY (DEFICIT)
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017

Partners' Equity (Deficit) at December 31,2016

Net loss

Transfer of interest

Partners’ Equity (Deficit) at December 31, 2017

Net loss

Distributions

PARTNERS' EQUITY (DEFICIT) AT
DECEMBER 31, 2018

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

Managing Administrative
General General Limited Syndication
Partner Partner Partner Costs Total
$ (13721 $ 364§ (15,170) % (75,500) §  (204,027)
(38,429) 3) (19,213) (57,645)
(109,883) - 34,383 75,500
(262,033) 361 (261,672)
(81,793) #) (81,797)
(99,232) (99,232)
$  (443,058) § 357 % $ §  (442,701)




URBAN HOUSING GRANT HEIGHTS, L.P.
F.H.A. PROJECT NO. 129-44084
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017

2018 2017
Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Net loss $ (81,797) $ (57,645)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net
cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation 77,232 84,720
Amortization of debt issuance costs 572 572
(Increase) Decrease in:
Accounts receivable 3,035 47,398
Prepaid expenses (231) (708)
Tenant security deposits 4) (1,015)
Increase (Decrease) in:
Accrued interest payable 18,107 12,983
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 25,312 2,510
Bank overdraft - (1,793)
Prepaid rents (2,613) (2,999)
Due to related parties 15,815 (17,120)
Tenant security deposits 825 1,018
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 56,253 67,921
Cash Flows From Investing Activities:
Due (from) related parties - (75,000)
Net deposits to replacement reserve (11,281) (11,270)
Net (deposits to) withdrawals from operating reserve (6,522) 42,205
Net withdrawals from Section 8 reserve 41,244 18,832
Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Investing Activities 23,441 (25,233)
Cash Flows From Financing Activities:
Payments on mortgages payable (12,605) (11,754)
Distributions (24,232) -
Net Cash Used in Financing Activities (36,837) (11,754)
Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents 42,857 30,934
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year 30,934 -
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR $ 73,791 $ 30,934
Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information:
Cash paid for mortgage interest $ 31,629 $ 37,592
Cash paid for taxes $ 800 $ 800
Supplementary Non-Cash Investing and Financial Transactions:
Distributions funded with due from related party $ 75,000 $ -

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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URBAN HOUSING GRANT HEIGHTS, L.P.
F.H.A. PROJECT NO. 129-44084
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017

Note 1 - Organization:

Urban Housing Grant Heights, L.P., (the “Partnership”) was formed as a limited partnership under the laws of the
State of California on May 10, 2000 for the purpose of operating a rental housing project (the “Project”). The
Project consists of 28 units, and is located in San Diego, California. The property was placed in service in February
2002.

The Project is regulated by HUD as to rent charges and operating methods. The Regulatory Agreement limits
annual distributions of net operating receipts of “surplus cash” available at the end of each year. The Project was
eligible for Low-Income Housing Tax Credits established under the program described in Section 42 of the Internal
Revenue Code.

The Partnership had a Managing General Partner, Urban League of San Diego County, A California Nonprofit
Corporation, which had a .005% interest, an Administrative General Partner, Housing Southern California, LL.C, a
California Limited Liability Company, which had a .005% interest, and one Limited Partner, NEF Assignment
Corporation, an Illinois Not-For-Profit Corporation, which had a 99.99% interest.

Effective April 30, 2017, the Partnership has two General Partners, a Managing General Partner, Urban League of
San Diego County, a California Nonprofit Corporation which has a 99.995% interest and an Administrative General
Partner, Housing Southern California, LL.C, a California Limited Liability Company, which has a .005% interest.

All profits and losses and distributable cash flows as defined by the Partnership Agreement, were distributable
.005% to the Managing General Partner, .005% to the Administrative General Partner and 99.99% to the Limited
Partner. Effective April 30, 2017 all profits and losses and distributable cash flows as defined by the Partnership
Agreement, are distributable 99.995% to the Managing General Partner and .005% to the Administrative General
Partner.

Note 2 - Significant Accounting Policies:

Accounting Method

The Partnership’s books are maintained on the accrual basis of accounting, which is in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (U.S. GAAP) and, accordingly, reflect
all significant receivables, payables, and other liabilities.

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and
the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from
those estimates.



URBAN HOUSING GRANT HEIGHTS, L.P.
F.H.A. PROJECT NO. 129-44084
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017

Note 2 - Significant Accounting Policies: (Continued)

Fair Value Measurements

Fair value accounting standards define fair value, establish a framework for measuring fair value, outline a fair
value hierarchy based on inputs used to measure fair value and enhance disclosure requirements for fair value
measurements. The fair value hierarchy distinguishes between market participant assumptions based on market
data obtained from sources independent of the reporting entity (observable inputs that are classified within Level
1 and 2 of the hierarchy) and the reporting entity’s own assumptions about market participant assumptions
(unobservable inputs classified within Level 3 of the hierarchy). The Partnership had no financial instruments
at December 31, 2018 and 2017.

Capitalization and Depreciation

The Partnership’s investment in real estate is recorded at cost. Improvements are capitalized, while expenditures
for maintenance and repairs are charged to expense as incurred. Upon disposal of depreciable property, the
appropriate property accounts are reduced by the related costs and accumulated depreciation.

Depreciation is provided for in amounts sufficient to relate the cost of depreciable assets to operations over their
estimated service lives, The estimated service life of the assets for depreciation purposes may be different than
their actual economic useful lives.

Method Estimated Life
Land improvements MACRS 15 years
Buildings Straight-line 27.5 years
Furnishings MACRS 7 years

Depreciation totaled $77,232 and $84,720 for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively.

Impairment of Real Estate

The Partnership reviews its investment in real estate for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value of such property may not be recoverable. Recoverability is
measured by a comparison of the carrying amount of the real estate to the future net undiscounted cash flows
expected to be generated by the rental property and any estimated proceeds from the eventual disposition of the
real estate. If the real estate is considered to be impaired, the impairment to be recognized is measured at the
amount by which the carrying amount of real estate exceeds the fair value of such property. There were no
impairment losses recognized in 2018 or 2017.



URBAN HOUSING GRANT HEIGHTS, L.P.
F.H.A. PROJECT NO. 129-44084
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017

Note 2 - Significant Accounting Policies: (Continued)

Debt Issuance Costs

Debt issuance costs are incurred in order to obtain permanent financing for the Project. Debt issuance costs are
amortized on a straight-line basis over the term of the related loan, which approximates the interest method.
Unamortized deferred financing costs are presented as a direct reduction from the carrying value of the related
obligation to which such costs relate. Amortization of debt issuance costs is reported as a component of mortgage
interest and totaled $572 and $572 for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

Bad debts are recognized on the allowance method based on management’s evaluation of outstanding accounts
receivable. Management believes that all accounts receivable were fully collectible; therefore, no allowance for
doubtful accounts receivable was recorded at December 31, 2018 and 2017.

Deferred Revenue and Prepaid Rents

Laundry payments received in advance are classified as liabilities until earned. Advanced laundry payments are
earned and recognized as revenue over the term of the laundry contract. Rental payments received in advance
are deferred and classified as liabilities until earned.

Revenue Recognition

Rental revenue attributable to residential leases is recorded when due from residents, generally upon the first day
of each month. Leases are for periods of up to one year, with rental payments due monthly. Other revenue
includes fees for late payments, cleaning, damages, laundry facilities and other charges and is recorded when
earned. Rental income is shown at its maximum gross potential. Vacancy loss is shown as a reduction in rental
income. Rental units occupied by employees are included in rental income and as an expense of operations.

Housing Assistance Payments Contract

The Partnership entered into a housing assistance payment contract with the Department of Housing and Urban
Development (“HUD”). Contract #CA33M000077 expires on May 31, 2037. The amount earned on the contract
totaled $229,218 and $210,724 for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively, and is included
in rental income.”’

Allowable Distributions

Under the Regulatory Agreement, semi-annual distributions of surplus cash may be distributed to the partners
provided that there is no default under the Regulatory Agreement. Distributions totaled $99,232 and §$-0- for the
years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively.



URBAN HOUSING GRANT HEIGHTS, L.P.
F.H.A. PROJECT NO. 129-44084
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017

Note 2 - Significant Accounting Policies: (Continued)

Income Taxes

No provision or benefit for income taxes has been included in these financial statements since taxable income
(loss) passes through to, and is reportable by, the partners individually. A provision for state income taxes of
$800 has been paid for the year ended December 31, 2018 as required for all California Limited Partnerships.
The Partnership believes that it has appropriate support for any tax positions taken, and as such, does not have
any uncertain tax positions that are material to the financial statements.

The Partnership’s tax returns for the years ended December 31, 2018, 2017, 2016 and 2015 are subject to
examination by the Internal Revenue Service and State taxing authorities, generally three or four years after the
returns were filed.

Concentrations

The Partnership’s operations are concentrated in the multifamily real estate market. In addition, the Partnership
operates in a heavily regulated environment. The operations of the Partnership are subject to the administrative
directives, rules and regulations of federal, state and local regulatory agencies. Such administrative directives,
rules and regulations are subject to change by an act of congress or an administrative change. Such changes may
occur with little notice or inadequate funding to pay for the related cost, including the additional administrative
burden, to comply with a change.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statements of cash flows, the Partnership considers all highly liquid debt instruments
purchased with a maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. Certificates of deposit may be redeemed
without significant penalty and are considered cash and cash equivalents, regardless of maturity. Cash is defined
as cash in demand deposit accounts as well as cash on hand. Not included as cash are funds restricted as to their
use, regardless of liquidity, such as replacement reserve, operating reserve, Section 8 reserve and tenant security
deposits. The Partnership occasionally maintains cash on deposit at a bank in excess of the Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation limit. The Partnership has not experienced any losses in such accounts.

Subsequent Events

In preparing these financial statements, the Partnership has evaluated events and transactions for potential
recognition or disclosure through March 27, 2019, the date the financial statements were available to be issued.

Reclassification

The Partnership has classified certain prior year information to conform with the current year presentation.
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URBAN HOUSING GRANT HEIGHTS, L.P.
F.H.A. PROJECT NO. 129-44084
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31,2018 AND 2017

Note 3 - Restricted Deposits:

According to the Partnership and loan agreements, the Partnership is required to maintain certain reserves. The
following shows the activity in such accounts during 2018 and 2017.

Replacement Reserve

The Partnership is required to fund a replacement reserve in an annual amount of $11,200.

2018 2017
Balance, Beginning of Year $ 76,772 $ 65,502
Add: Monthly deposits 11,200 11,200
Interest income 81 70
Balance, End of Year $ 88,053 $ 76,772

Operating Reserve

The Partnership is required to fund an operating reserve in an initial amount of $56,000 and annually in an
amount equal to 2% of gross rent collections until the end of the tax compliance period.

2018 2017
Balance, Beginning of Year $ 63,549 $ 105,754
Add: Monthly deposits 6,455 7,727
Interest income 67 78
Less: Withdrawals - (50,000)
Service charge - (10)

Balance, End of Year $ 70,071 $ 63,549

1



URBAN HOUSING GRANT HEIGHTS, L.P.
F.H.A. PROJECT NO. 129-44084
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017

Note 3 - Restricted Deposits: (Continued)

Section 8 Reserve

The Partnership was required to fund a Section 8 reserve in the initial amount of $50,000 until the end of the
compliance period in accordance with the provisions of the Partnership Agreement and the Section § Account
Funding and Disbursement Agreement. Restricted funds were to be held by the Partnership and the Limited
Partner to be used in the event that the Section 8 contract is not renewed. Any excess funds remaining in the
Section 8 reserve at the end of the compliance period have been released from the Section 8 reserve in accordance
with the Partnership Agreement.

Limited
Partner Partnership
Reserve Reserve Total
Balance at December 31, 2016 $ 23,817 $ 36,259 $ 60,076
Add: Monthly deposits - 6,012 6,012
Interest income 136 30 166
Less: Withdrawals - (25,000) (25,000)
Service charge - (10) (10)
Balance at December 31, 2017 23,953 17,291 41,244
Add: Monthly deposits - 5,010 5,010
Transfers (24,232) 24,232 -
Interest income 279 10 289
Less: Withdrawals - (46,532) (46,532)
Service charge - (11 an
Balance at December 31, 2018 $ - $ - $ -

Tenant Security Deposits

The Partnership is required to hold security deposits in a separate bank account in the name of the Project. The
amount held by the Partnership totaled $9,067 and $9,063 at December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively.

Note 4 - Transactions With Affiliates and Related Parties:

The Managing General Partner is entitled to a partnership management fee according to the Partnership Agreement,
subject to specific terms. The partnership management fee totaled $19,365 and $3,550 for the years ended
December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively.

The Managing General Partner is also entitled to a incentive management fee according to the Partnership Agreement,
subject to specific terms. There were no incentive management fees earned for the years ended December 31,2018 and
2017.

Managing General Partner Advance

The Partnership Agreement provides for various obligations of the Managing General Partner, including their
obligation to provide funds for any development and operating deficits.

12



URBAN HOUSING GRANT HEIGHTS, L.P.
F.H.A. PROJECT NO. 129-44084
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017

Note 4 - Transactions With Affiliates and Related Parties: (Continued)

Managing General Partner Advance (Continued)

The Partnership had advanced the Managing General Partner $-0- and $75,000 at December 31, 2018 and 2017,
respectively to pursue the refinancing of the property, which is included in due from related parties.

Amounts due to related parties are as follows at December 31:

N
<
o]
o]
it
~J

|
|

Partnership management fee $ 19,365 $ 3,550

Total Due to Related Parties $ 19,365 $ 3,550

Note S - Mortgages Pavyable:

Mortgages payable consist of the following at December 31:

[\
—
[oo]
[y
—_—
~J

The mortgage note payable to Berkadia Commercial Mortgage was
funded on June 2, 2003 in the original amount of $451,000 and bears
interest at 7% per annum. Monthly principal and interest payments
are payable in the amount of $3,001 through June 1, 2033.
Collateralized by investment in real estate. Accrued interest totaled
$1,910 and $1,983 at December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively. $ 327414 $ 340,019

The mortgage note which was originated on February 12, 2002, is held
by the San Diego Housing Cominission and bears interest at 3% per
annum. Principal and interest are payable from residual receipts,
calculated annually. Principal and accrued interest are due February
2057. Collateralized by investment in real estate. Accrued interest
totaled $406,931 and $388,751 at December 31, 2018 and 2017,
respectively. 867,279 867,279

The promissory note payable which was originated in February 2002
is held by Neighborhood National Bank, for the Affordable Housing
Program (AHP) in the original amount of $108,000. The note is
noninterest bearing as long as all compliance requirements of the note
are met. Principal is due no later than at the expiration of the retention
period. Collateralized by investment in real estate. 108,000 108,000

Total Mortgages Payable 1,302,693 1,315,298
Less: Unamortized debt issuance costs (8,257) (8,829)

Total, Net $ 1,294,436 $ 1,306,469

Debt issuance costs total $17,171, less accumulated amortization of $8,914 and $8,342 at December 31, 2018 and
2017, respectively.



URBAN HOUSING GRANT HEIGHTS, L.P.
F.H.A. PROJECT NO. 129-44084
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017

Note 5 - Mortgages Pavable: (Continued)

The future principal payments on the mortgages payable are as follows:

Years Ended

December 31
2019 $ 13,515
2020 14,492
2021 15,540
2022 16,663
2023 17,868
Thereafter 1,224,615
Total $ 1,302,693

Note 6 - Distribution of Operating Cash Flows/Surplus Cash:

In accordance with the Partnership Agreement, cash flow shall be distributed annually as follows:

a. To repay any accrued and unpaid interest and unpaid principal on loans made by the General Partners.

b. To the General Partners (in the order of loans made, with earlier loans repaid in full before subsequent
loans are repaid) to repay any amounts treated as loans to the Partnership (without interest) by the General
Partners and not yet repaid.

¢. $20,000 noncumulative plus fifty percent (50%) of Cash Flow to the Managing General Partner as a
Partnership Management Fee.

d. Payment of an Incentive Management Fee, if any, to the Managing General Partner equal to thirty-three
percent (33%) of the balance on a noncumulative basis.

e. Payment of residual receipts loans to the Project in the agreed upon priority and percentage of cash
available.

f. Remaining cash flow is to be distributed as described in Note 1.

Note 7 - Management Fees:

Hallmark Asset Management earned management fees as follows for the years ended December 31:

2018 2017
Accrued Management Fee Payable, Beginning of Year $ 2,941 $ 2,183
Management fees earned 24,633 25,817
Management fees paid (23,312) (25,059)
Accrued Management Fee Payable, End of Year h) 4,262 $ 2,941

(Included in accounts payable and accrued expenses)
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URBAN HOUSING GRANT HEIGHTS, L.P.
F.H.A. PROJECT NO. 129-44084
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017

Note 8 - Federal Financial Assistance:

Following is a schedule of federal financial assistance for the year ended December 31, 2018:

U.S. Department of HUD Expenditures
Section 8 - Housing Assistance Payments $ 229,218

15



URBAN HOUSING GRANT HEIGHTS, L.P.
F.H.A. PROJECT NO. 129-44084

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES OF PROJECT OPERATING EXPENSES
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017

Administrative Expenses:
Property management fees
Rent free unit
Telephone
Professional fees - Accounting
Management consultants
Office supplies
Bookkeeping
Bad debts
Other administrative:

Administrative services

Total Administrative Expenses

Utilities Expenses:
Water

Sewer
Gas
Electricity
Total Utilities Expenses

Operating and Maintenance Expenses:
Repairs
Contracts
Maintenance supplies and materials
Trash removal
Decorating and painting
Exterminating

Total Operating and Maintenance Expenses

Taxes and Insurance Expenses:
Property and liability insurance
Other taxes, licenses, permits and insurance
Real estate taxes

Total Taxes and Insurance Expenses

Marketing and Leasing Expenses:
Credit checks/concessions
Total Marketing and Leasing Expenses
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2018
24,633
15,436
12,821
10,855

6,801
6,454
6,013
4,392

3,377

90,782

11,745
8,771
8,032
4,068

32,616

113,210
63,843
11,876

7,528
1,291
868

198,616

7,936
7,102
991

16,029

8,660

8,660

@ A

2017
25,817
15,115
10,160
10,555

9,883
5,858
6,105
3,501

4,801

91,795

9,332
7,053
7,822
3,606

27,813

82,927
64,966
12,267
5,771
4,160
1,062

171,153

7,428
7,004
1,577

16,009

1,156

1,156



URBAN HOUSING GRANT HEIGHTS, L.P.
F.H.A. PROJECT NO. 129-44084
SUPPLEMENTARY BALANCE SHEET DATA
DECEMBER 31, 2018

Current Assets:

1120  Cash - Operations

1130  Tenant accounts receivable
1200  Prepaid expenses

1100T Total Current Assets

Deposits Held in Trust:
1191  Tenant security deposits held in trust

Restricted Deposits:

1320  Replacement reserve

1330 Other reserve

13007 Total Restricted Deposits

Fixed Assets:

1410  Land and land improvements
1420  Buildings

1460  Furnishings

1400T Total Fixed Assets

1495  Less: Accumulated depreciation
1400N Net Fixed Assets

1000T Total Assets

ASSETS
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73,791
6,280
2,166

82,237

9,067

88,053
70,071

158,124

615,019
1,918,701

123,319

2,657,039

(1,564,943)
1,092,096

1,341,524



SUPPLEMENTARY BALANCE SHEET DATA (CONTINUED)

Current Liabilities:

URBAN HOUSING GRANT HEIGHTS, L.P.
F.H.A. PROJECT NO. 129-44084

DECEMBER 31, 2018

LIABILITIES AND PARTNERS' EQUITY

2110  Accounts payable - Operations

2113 Accounts payable - Entity

2116  Accounts payable - section 8 and other
2123 Accrued management fee payable

2131  Accrued interest payable - First mortgage
2170  Current portion of first mortgage payable

2210  Prepaid revenue

2122T Total Current Liabilities

Other Liabilities:

2191  Tenant security deposits payable

Long-Term Liabilities:
2310 Notes payable

2320  First mortgage payable

2324  Other loans and notes payable
2332 Accrued interest - Notes payable
2300T Total Long-Term Liabilities

2000T Total Liabilities

Partners' Equity:

3130  Partners' equity (deficit)

2033T Total Liabilities and Partners' Equity

Supplementary Information Related to the Balance Sheet Data:

Account 1330 - Other reserves:

Operating reserve

Total Other Reserves
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42,983
19,365
3,160
4,262
1,910
13,515
1,291

86,486

9,887

867,279
305,642
108,000
406,931

1,687,852

1,784,225

(442,701)

1,341,524

70,071

70,071



Revenues:

URBAN HOUSING GRANT HEIGHTS, L.P.
F.H.A. PROJECT NO. 129-44084
SUPPLEMENTARY OF PROFIT AND LOSS DATA
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

Rental Revenue:

5120 Rent revenue - Gross potential
5121  Tenant assistance payments
5100T Total Rental Revenue

Vacancies:
5220  Vacancies - Apartments

5152N Net Rental Revenue

Financial Revenue:

5410 Financial revenue - Project operations

5440 Revenue from investments - Replacement reserve
5490 Revenue from investments - Miscellaneous
5400T Total Financial Revenue

Other Revenue:

5910 Laundry and vending revenue
5920  Tenant charges

5900T Total Other Revenue

5000T Total Revenues

Expenses:

Administrative Expenses:

6204 Management consultants

6250  Other renting expenses

6311  Office expenses

6320 Management fee

6331  Administrative rent free unit

6350  Audit expense

6351 Bookkeeping fees/Accounting services
6370 Bad debts

6390 Miscellaneous administrative expenses
6263T Total Administrative Expenses

{Continued)
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$ 177,454
229,218
406,672

(2,409)

404,263

294
81
67

442

2,148
4,958
7,106

411,811

6,801
8,660
19,275
24,633
15,436
10,855
6,013
4,392
3,377
99,442



URBAN HOUSING GRANT HEIGHTS, L.P.
F.H.A. PROJECT NO. 129-44084
SUPPLEMENTARY PROFIT AND LOSS DATA (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

Expenses: (Continued)
Utilities Expense:

6450  Electricity $ 4,068
6451 Water 11,745
6452  Gas 8,032
6453  Sewer 8,771
6400T Total Utilities Expense 32,616
Operating and Maintenance Expenses:

6515  Supplies 11,876
6520 Contracts 175,717
6525  Garbage and trash removal 7,528
6546  Heating/cooling repairs and maintenance 314
6570  Vehicle and maintenance equipment operation and repairs 3,181
6500T Total Operating and Maintenance Expenses 198,616
Taxes and Insurance:

6710 Real estate taxes 991
6720  Property and liability insurance 7,936
6721  Fidelity bond insurance 2,161
6790 Miscellaneous taxes, licenses, permits and insurance 4941
6700T Total Taxes and Insurance 16,029

Financial Expenses:

6820 Interest on first mortgage payable 23,900
6830 Interest on notes payable 26,408
6800T Total Financial Expenses 50,308
6000T Total Cost of Operations Before Depreciation 397,011
5060T Profit (Loss) Before Depreciation 14,800
Depreciation:

6600  Depreciation expense 77,232
5060N Operating Profit or Loss (62,432)
Corporate or Mortagor Revenue/Expenses:

7190  Other expenses 19,365
7100T Net Entity Expenses 19,365
3250  Profit or Loss (Net Income or Loss) 5 (81,797)
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URBAN HOUSING GRANT HEIGHTS, L.P.
F.H.A. PROJECT NO. 129-44084
SUPPLEMENTARY PROFIT AND LOSS DATA (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

Supplementary Information Related to the Profit and Loss Data:

Account 5490 - Revenue from investments - Miscellaneous:
Interest income - Operating reserve
Total Revenue From Investments - Miscellaneous

Account 6790 - Miscellaneous taxes, licenses. permits and insurance:
Employment practice liability insurance
Licenses
Franchise tax expense
Total Miscellaneous Taxes, Licenses, Permits and Insurance

Account 7190 - Other Expenses:
Partnership management fee
Total Other Expenses

S1000-010 Total first mortgage (or bond) principal payments required during the
audit year (12 monthly payments). This applies to all direct loans,
amortizing HUD-helds, and fully insured first mortgages.

S1600-020 Total of 12 monthly deposits in the audit year into the Replacement
Reserve account, as required by the Regulatory Agreement, even if
payments may be temporarily suspended or reduced.

S1000-030 Replacement Reserves, or Residual Receipts and Releases which are
included as expense items on the Profit and Loss statement.

S$1060-040 Profit Improvement Reserve releases under the Flexible Subsidy
Program that are included as expense items on the Profit and Loss
Statement.
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67
67

2,305
1,836
800

4,941

19,365

19,365

12,605

11,200

None



S1100-010

3250

S1260-420

S1160-020

3130

URBAN HOUSING GRANT HEIGHTS, L.P.
F.H.A. PROJECT NO. 129-44084
SUPPLEMENTARY EQUITY DATA
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

Partners' Equity (Deficit) at December 31, 2017

Net loss

Distributions

Other changes in equity - distribution funded with due from related party

Partners' Equity (Deficit) at December 31, 2018

22

$

$

(261,672)
(81,797)

(24,232)

(75,000)

(442,701)



URBAN HOUSING GRANT HEIGHTS, L.P.
F.H.A. PROJECT NO. 129-44084
SUPPLEMENTARY CASH FLOW DATA
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

Cash Flows From Operating Activities:

S1200-010 Rental receipts $ 388,017
S1200-020 Interest receipts 442
S1200-030 Other operating receipts 7,106
S1200-040 Total Receipts 395,565
$1200-050 Administrative (57,912)
S$1200-070 Management fee (23,312)
S$1200-090 Utilities (31,711)
S1200-110 Operating and maintenance (179,309)
S1200-120 Real estate taxes (991)
S$1200-140 Property insurance (8,167)
S1200-150 Miscellaneous taxes and insurance (7,102)
S1200-160 Tenant security deposits 821
S1200-180 Interest on first mortgage (23,401)
S1200-190 Interest on note payable (8,228)
S1200-230 Total Disbursements (339,312)
S1200-240 Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 56,253
Cash Flows From Investing Activities:

S1200-250 Net deposits to replacement reserve (11,281)
S$1200-255 Net withdrawals from other reserves 34,722
51200-350 Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities 23,441
Cash Flows From Financing Activities:

$1200-360 Principal payments - First mortgage (12,605)
$1200-420 Distributions (24,232)
$1200-460 Net Cash Used in Financing Activities (36,837)
Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents 42,857
Cash at Beginning of Year 30,934
Cash at End of Year $ 73,791
(Continued)
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URBAN HOUSING GRANT HEIGHTS, L.P.
F.H.A. PROJECT NO. 129-44084
SUPPLEMENTARY CASH FLOW DATA (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

Reconciliation of Net Loss to Net Cash
Provided by Operating Activities:
3250 Profit or Loss (Net income or loss) $ (81,797)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net
cash provided by operating activities:

6600 Depreciation 77,232
S$1200-486 Amortization of debt issuance costs 572
(Increase) Decrease in:
S$1200-490 Tenant accounts receivable (560)
$1200-500 Accounts receivable - Other 3,595
$1200-520 Prepaid expenses (231)
$1200-530 Tenant security deposits held in trust “)
Increase (Decrease) in:
S1200-540 Accounts payable - Operations 20,831
S1200-560 Accrued liabilities 4,481
S$1200-570 Accrued interest payable 18,107
S$1200-580 Tenant security deposits payable 825
S$1200-590 Prepaid revenue (2,613)
S1200-605 Entity/construction liability accounts 15,815
S$1200-610 Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities $ 56,253
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URBAN HOUSING GRANT HEIGHTS, L.P.
F.H.A. PROJECT NO. 129-44084
SUPPLEMENTARY DATA REQUIRED BY HUD
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

Reserve Accounts Data

Schedule of Reserve for Replacements:

1320P Balance, December 31, 2017 $ 76,772
1320DT Add: Total monthly deposits 11,200
1320INT Interest income 81
1320 Balance, December 31, 2018 $ 88,053

Surplus Cash and Fixed Asset Data

Computation of Surplus Cash, Distributions, and Residual Receipts - Annual:

Cash:

S1300-010 Cash $ 82,858
S1300-040 Total Cash 82,858
Current Obligations:

S1300-050  Accrued mortgage interest payable 1,910
S1300-075  Accounts payable - Operations 42,983
S1300-100  Accrued expenses 7,422
2210 Prepaid revenue 1,291
2191 Tenant security deposits payable 9,887
S1300-140  Total Current Obligations 63,493
S1300-150  Surplus Cash (Deficiency) $ 19,365

Computation of Surplus Cash, Distributions. and Residual Receipts - Mid-Year:

None
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URBAN HOUSING GRANT HEIGHTS, L.P.

F.H.A. PROJECT NO. 129-44084
SUPPLEMENTARY DATA REQUIRED BY HUD (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

Fixed Asset Data:

1410 Land and land improvements
1420 Buildings

1460 Furnishings

1400T  Total Fixed Assets

1495 Accumulated Depreciation

1400N Net Book Value

Schedule of Additions to Fixed Assets:

None

Schedule of Deletions to Fixed Assets:

None

Balance Balance

December 31, December 31,

2017 Additions Deletions 2018
$ 615,019 - 615,019
1,918,701 - 1,918,701
123,319 - 123,319
$ 2,657,039 - 2,657,039
3 1,487.711 77,232 1,564,943
$ 1,169,328 1,092,096
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ATTACHMENT 8
san p1E60 SAN DIEGO COMMUNITY HOUSING CORPORATION
DEVELOPER’S DISCLOSURE STATEMENT

HOUSING

COMMISSION

DEVELOPERS/CONSULTANTS/SELLERS/CONTRACTORS/
ENTITY SEEKING GRANT/BORROWERS
(Collectively referred to as "CONTRACTOR" herein)
Statement for Public Disclosure

1. Name of CONTRACTOR: San Diego Community Housing Corporation

Address and ZIP Code: 6160 Mission Gorge Road

Telephone Number: 619-876-4222

Name of Principal Contact for CONTRACTOR: Ted Miyahara

Federal Identification Number or Social Security Number of CONTRACTOR: 33-0661980

If the CONTRACTOR is not an individual doing business under his own name, the CONTRACTOR has the status
indicated below and is organized or operating under the laws of California as:

IS e

] A corporation (Attach Articles of Incorporation)
DX A nonprofit or charitable institution or corporation. (Attach copy of Articles of Incorporation and documentary
evidence verifying current valid nonprofit or charitable status)
] A partnership known as: _____
(Name)
Check one:
[] General Partnership (Attach Statement of General Partnership)
[] Limited Partnership (Attach Certificate of Limited Partnership)
] A business association or a joint venture known as: ___
(Attach joint venture or business association agreement)
[] A Federal, State or local government or instrumentality thereof.

[] Other (explain)

7. If the CONTRACTOR is not an individual or a government agency or instrumentality, give date of organization:
10/24/94

8. Provide names, addresses, telephone numbers, title of position (if any) and nature and extent of the interest of the current
officers, principal members, shareholders, and investors of the CONTRACTOR, other than a government agency or
instrumentality, as set forth below:

a. If the CONTRACTOR is a corporation, the officers, directors or trustees, and each stockholder owning more
than 10 percent of any class of stock.

b. If the CONTRACTOR is a nonprofit or charitable institution or corporation, the members who constitute the
board of trustees or board of directors or similar governing body.

Please see attached list of board members and officers




10.

1.

c. Ifthe CONTRACTOR is a partnership, each partner, whether a general or limited, and either the percent of
interest or a description of the character and extent of interest.

d. If the CONTRACTOR is a business association or a joint venture, each participant and either the percent
of interest or a description of the character and extent of interest.

e. If the CONTRACTOR is some other entity, the officers, the members of the governing body, and each
person having an interest of more than 10 percent.(Attach extra sheet if necessary)

Name and Address Posm(?n '_I‘ltle (if any) and percent of mferest or
description of character and extent of interest

Name: n/a
Address:

Name:
Address:

Name:
Address:

Has the makeup as set forth in Item 8(a) through 8(e) changed within the last twelve (12) months? If yes, please explain
in detail.

Yes. Horace Brown was a previous board member and stepped down from board due to work commitments and
volunteer work that required his attention.

Is it anticipated that the makeup as set forth in Item 8(a) through 8(e) will change within the next twelve (12) months?
If yes, please explain in detail.
No

Provide name, address, telephone number, and nature and extent of interest of each person or entity (not named in
response to Item 8) who has a beneficial interest in any of the shareholders or investors named in response to Item 8,
which gives such person or entity more than a computed 10 percent interest in the CONTRACTOR (for example,
more than 20 percent of the stock in a corporation that holds 50 percent of the stock of the CONTRACTOR, or more
than 50 percent of the stock in the corporation that holds 20 percent of the stock of the CONTRACTOR):

Position Title (if any) and percent of interest or

Name and Address description of character and extent of interest

Name: N/A
Address:

Name:
Address:

Name:
Address:
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13.

15,

16.

Names, addresses and telephone numbers (if not given above) of officers and directors or trustees of any corporation
or firm listed under Item 8 or Item 11 above:

Name and Address Posxtu?n Tltle (if any) and percent of mferest or
description of character and extent of interest
Name:
Name:
Address:
Name:
Address:

Is the CONTRACTOR a subsidiary of or affiliated with any other corporation or corporations, any other firm or any
other business entity or entities of any nature? If yes, list each such corporation, firm or business entity by name and
address, specify its relationship to the CONTRACTOR, and identify the officers and directors or trustees common to
the CONTRACTOR and such other corporation, firm or business entity.

Name and Address Relationship to CONTRACTOR

Name: Occupational Training Services Separate nonprofit organization with same board of
directors

Address: 6160 Mission Gorge Road #204
San Diego, CA 92120

Name:

Address:

Name:
Address:

Provide the financial condition of the CONTRACTOR as of the date of the statement and for a period of twenty-four
(24) months prior to the date of its statement, as reflected in the attached financial statements, including, but not
necessarily limited to, profit and loss statements and statements of financial position.

On file with the San Diego Housing Commission

If funds for the development/project are to be obtained from sources other than the CONTRACTOR's own funds,
provide a statement of the CONTRACTOR's plan for financing the development/project:

The contractor proposes to assign an existing Housing Commission loan to a to-be-formed tax-credit limited
partnership, multifamily housing revenue bonds, conventional loan, seller contribution, seller carryback loan,
developer fee contribution, existing reserves and income during construction.

Provide sources and amount of cash available to CONTRACTOR to meet equity requirements of the proposed
undertaking:



The Contractor is utilizing local public funding, low income housing tax credits, private activity bonds to finance the
project. Sand Diego Community Housing Corporation will seek a predevelopment loan or finance predevelopment
expenditures with its own funds. Please see attached financial statements on file with the Housing Commission; San
Diego Community Housing Corporation has sufficient cash and cash equivalents to finance predevelopment activities
and provide lender/investor guarantees.

a. In banks/savings and loans: N/A
Name:
Address: -
Amount:

b. By loans from affiliated or associated corporations or firms: N/A
Name:
Address:
Amount: $

c. By sale of readily salable assets/including marketable securities:

Description Market Value (8) Mortgages or Liens ($)

17. Names and addresses of bank references, and name of contact at each reference:

Name and Address Contact Name
Name: Torrey Pines Bank Ryan Vertigan
Address: 8379 Center Drive
La Mesa, CA 91942
Name: Wells Fargo Sam Pustilnik
Address: 9360 Clairemont Mesa Boulevard
San Diego, CA 92123
Name: Neighborhood National Bank Jose Ibanez
Address: 3511 National Avenue
San Diego, CA 92113

18. Has the CONTRACTOR or any of the CONTRACTOR's officers or principal members, shareholders or investors, or
other interested parties been adjudged bankrupt, either voluntary or involuntary, within the past 10 years?

] Yes X No

If yes, give date, place, and under what name.

19. Has the CONTRACTOR or anyone referred to above as "principals of the CONTRACTOR" been convicted of any

felony within the past 10 years?
4



[] Yes

X No

If yes, give for each case (1) date, (2) charge, (3) place, (4) court, and (5) action taken. Attach any explanation deemed

necessary.

20. List undertakings (including, but not limited to, bid bonds, performance bonds, payment bonds and/or improvement
bonds) comparable to size of the proposed project which have been completed by the CONTRACTOR, including
identification and brief description of each project, date of completion, and amount of bond, whether any legal action
has been taken on the bond: N/A

Type of Bond

Project Description

Date of
Completion

Amount of
Bond

Action on Bond

21.  If the CONTRACTOR, or a parent corporation, a subsidiary, an affiliate, or a principal of the CONTRACTOR is to
participate in the development as a construction contractor or builder, provide the following information: N/A

a. Name and addresses of such contractor or builder: N/A

Name and Address

Affiliation

Name:

Address:

Name:

Address:

Name:

Address:

b. Has such contractor or builder within the last 10 years ever failed to qualify as a responsible bidder, refused to
enter into a contract after an award has been made, or failed to complete a construction or development contract?

[]Yes

] No

If yes, please explain, in detail, each such instance:

c¢. Total amount of construction or development work performed by such contractor or builder during the last three

(3) years: $

General description of such work:



List each project, including location, nature of work performed, name, address of the owner of the project, bonding
companies involved, amount of contract, date of commencement of project, date of completion, state whether any
change orders were sought, amount of change orders, was litigation commenced concerning the project, including
a designation of where, when and the outcome of the litigation. (Attach extra sheet if necessary)

Project Name

Project Owner

Contact Information
10 Name Address

Project Location

Project Details

Bonding Company

Involved Name Amount of Contract

Change Order Details

Change Order Cost

Litigation Details

Location/Date Qutcome Details

d.  Construction contracts or developments now being performed by such contractor or builder:

Identification of Contract or . Date to be
Location Amount
Development Completed

e.  Outstanding construction-contract bids of such contractor or builder:

Awarding Agency Amount Date Opened

22, Provide a detailed and complete statement regarding equipment, experience, financial capacity, and other resources
available to such contractor or builder for the performance of the work involved in the proposed project, specifying

6



23.

24,

25,

26.

particularly the qualifications of the personnel, the nature of the equipment, and the general experience of the
contractor:

The SDCHC team brings hands-on experience and expertise in deal structuring and negotiation, project
management, finance, design, construction, property management and asset management. Our experience allows
us to develop synergies across multiple segments of our industry and capitalize on in-house expertise across a wide
range of project types. Staff also specializes in government financing programs which involves complex rules and
regulations set by local, state and federal agencies.

Does any member of the governing body of SDHC, Housing Authority of the City of San Diego ("AUTHORITY") or
City of San Diego ("CITY"), to which the accompanying proposal is being made or any officer or employee of SDHC,
the AUTHORITY or the CITY who exercises any functions or responsibilities in connection with the carrying out of
the project covered by the CONTRACTOR's proposal, have any direct or indirect personal financial interest in the
CONTRACTOR or in the proposed contractor?

[] Yes X No

If yes, explain:

Statements and other evidence of the CONTRACTOR's qualifications and financial responsibility (other than the
financial statement referred to in Item 8) are attached hereto and hereby made a part hereof as follows:
N/A

Is the proposed CONTRACTOR, and/or are any of the proposed subcontractors, currently involved in any
construction-related litigation?

[]Yes X No

If yes, explain:

State the name, address and telephone numbers of CONTRACTOR's insurance agent(s) and/or companies for the
following coverage’s. List the amount of coverage (limits) currently existing in each category:

a. General Liability, including Bodily Injury and Property Damage Insurance [Attach certificate of insurance
showing the amount of coverage and coverage period(s)]

Check coverage(s) carried:

X Comprehensive Form

] Premises - Operations

O Explosion and Collapse Hazard

O Underground Hazard

] Products/Completed Operations Hazard
J Contractual Insurance

O Broad Form Property Damage

] Independent Contractors

] Personal Injury



27.

28.

29.

30.

b. Automobile Public Liability/Property Damage [Attach certificate of insurance showing the amount of
coverage and coverage period(s)]

Check coverage(s) carried:
X Comprehensive Form
] Owned

] Hired

] Non-Owned

¢.  Workers Compensation [Attach certificate of insurance showing the amount of coverage and coverage
period(s)] See attached

d. Professional Liability (Errors and Omissions) [Attach certificate of insurance showing the amount of
coverage and coverage period(s)] N/A

e. Excess Liability [Attach certificate(s) of insurance showing the amount of coverage and coverage period(s)]
See attached

f.  Other (Specify) [Attach certificate(s) of insurance showing the amount of coverage and coverage period(s)]
N/A

CONTRACTOR warrants and certifies that it will not during the term of the PROJECT, GRANT, LOAN,
CONTRACT, DEVELOPMENT and/or RENDITIONS OF SERVICES discriminate against any employee, person,
or applicant for employment because of race, age, sexual orientation, marital status, color, religion, sex, handicap, or
national origin. The CONTRACTOR will take affirmative action to ensure that applicants are employed, and that
employees are treated during employment, without regard to their race, age, sexual orientation, marital status, color,
religion, sex, handicap, or national origin. Such action shall include, but not be limited to the following: employment,
upgrading, demotion or termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and selection for training, including
apprenticeship. The CONTRACTOR agrees to post in conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants for
employment, notices to be provided by SDHC setting forth the provisions of this nondiscrimination clause.

The CONTRACTOR warrants and certifies that it will not, without prior written consent of SDHC, engage in any
business pursuits that are adverse, hostile or take incompatible positions to the interests of SDHC, during the term of
the PROJECT, DEVELOPMENT, LOAN, GRANT, CONTRACT and/or RENDITION OF SERVICES.

CONTRACTOR warrants and certifies that no member, Commissioner, Councilperson, officer, or employee of SDHC,
the AUTHORITY and/or the CITY, and no member of the governing body of the locality in which the PROJECT is
situated, no member of the governing body in which SDHC was activated, and no other public official of such locality
or localities who exercises any functions or responsibilities with respect to the assignment of work, has, during his or
her tenure, or will for one (1) year thereafter, have any interest, direct or indirect, in this PROJECT or the proceeds
thereof.

List all citations, orders to cease and desist, stop work orders, complaints, judgments, fines, and penalties received by
or imposed upon CONTRACTOR for safety violations from any and all government entities including but not limited
to, the City of San Diego, County of San Diego, the State of California, the United States of America and any and all



divisions and departments of said government entities for a period of five (5) years prior to the date of this statement.
If none, please state: N/A

Government Entity Making | Date Resolution
Complaint

32.

Has the CONTRACTOR ever been disqualified, removed from or otherwise prevented from bidding on or completing
a federal, state, or local government project because of a violation of law or a safety regulation?

[]Yes X No

If yes, please explain, in detail,

Please list all licenses obtained by the CONTRACTOR through the State of California and/or the United States of
America, which are required and/or will be utilized by the CONTRACTOR and/or are convenient to the performance
of the PROJECT, DEVELOPMENT, LOAN, GRANT, CONTRACT, or RENDITION OF SERVICES. State the
name of the governmental agency granting the license, type of license, date of grant, and the status of the license,
together with a statement as to whether the license has ever been revoked: N/A

Government License Descrintion License Number Date Issued Status Revocation
Agency P (Original) (Current) (Yes/No)

33.

34.

Describe in detail any and all other facts, factors or conditions that may adversely affect CONTRACTOR's ability to
perform or complete, in a timely manner, or at all, the PROJECT, CONTRACT, SALES of Real Property to,
DEVELOPMENT, repayment of the LOAN, adherence to the conditions of the GRANT, or performance of consulting
or other services under CONTRACT with SDHC.

N/A

Describe in detail, any and all other facts, factors or conditions that may favorably affect CONTRACTOR's ability to
perform or complete, in a timely manner, or at all, the PROJECT, CONTRACT, DEVELOPMENT, repayment of the
LOAN, adherence to the conditions of the GRANT, or performance of consulting or other services under CONTRACT
with SDHC.

Contractor has been in business for approximately 25-years and has a track record of producing affordable housing
throughout the County of San Diego. Applicant currently owns one of the subject asset and has extensive history and
knowledge to ensure that the project is completed successfully.



35. List all CONTRACTS with, DEVELOPMENTS for or with, LOANS with, PROJECTS with, GRANTS from, and
SALES of Real Property to SDHC, AUTHORITY and/or the CITY within the last five (5) years:
Date Entity Involved Current dslt'atus t, repaid Dollar Amount
(i.e. City SDHC, etc) (Current, e(:tl::q)uen , repaid, ollar Amoun
1995 SDHC Current $748,897
1995 City Current $363,197
2009 SDHC Current $504.,450
2017 SDHC Repaid $2,065,897
36.  Within the last five years, has the proposed CONTRACTOR, and/or have any of the proposed subcontractors, been
the subject of a complaint filed with the Contractor's State License Board (CSLB)?
[] Yes X No
If yes, explain:
37.  Within the last five years, has the proposed CONTRACTOR, and/or have any of the proposed subcontractors, had a

38.

39.

40.

revocation or suspension of a CONTRACTOR's License?

[]Yes X No

If yes, explain:

List three local references that would be familiar with your previous construction projects:

1. Name: Ms. Mi Yeong Lee

Address: 1122 Broadway, Suite 300, San Diego

Phone: 619-578-7536

Project Name and Description: Ocean View Acquisition Rehab
2. Name: Jose Dorado

Address: 276 Fourth Avenue Building C, Chula Vista

Phone: 619-476-5375

Project Name and Description: Colorado & Clover Acquisition Rehab
3. Name: Kenji Tamaoki

Address: 101 California Street, 40" Floor, San Francisco

Phone: 415-291-5033

Project Name and Description: Torrey Apartments Refinance

Give a brief statement regarding equipment, experience, financial capacity and other resources available to the
CONTRACTOR for the performance of the work involved in the proposed project, specifying particularly the
qualifications of the personnel, the nature of the equipment and the general experience of the CONTRACTOR.

N/A

Give the name and experience of the proposed Construction Superintendent.
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Name Experience
TBD SDCHC to competitively bid the project to three qualified general contractors.

Name of superintendent not known at this time

CONSENT TO PUBLIC DISCLOSURE BY CONTRACTOR

By providing the "Personal Information", (if any) as defined in Section 1798.3(a) of the Civil Code of the State of California
(to the extent that it is applicable, if at all), requested herein and by seeking a loan from, a grant from, a contract with, the
sale of real estate to, the right to develop from, and/or any and all other entitlements from the SAN DIEGO HOUSING
COMMISSION ("SDHC"), the HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF SAN DIEGO ("AUTHORITY") and/or the
CITY OF SAN DIEGO ("CITY"), the CONTRACTOR consents to the disclosure of any and all "Personal Information" and
of any and all other information contained in this Public Disclosure Statement. CONTRACTOR specifically, knowingly
and intentionally waives any and all privileges and rights that may exist under State and/or Federal Law relating to the public
disclosure of the information contained herein. With respect to "Personal Information,”" if any, contained herein, the
CONTRACTOR, by executing this disclosure statement and providing the information requested, consents to its disclosure
pursuant to the provisions of the Information Practices Act of 1977, Civil Code Section 1798.24(b). CONTRACTOR is
aware that a disclosure of information contained herein will be made at a public meeting or meetings of SDHC, the
AUTHORITY, and/or the CITY at such times as the meetings may be scheduled. CONTRACTOR hereby consents to the
disclosure of said "Personal Information," if any, more than thirty (30) days from the date of this statement at the duly
scheduled meeting(s) of SDHC, the AUTHORITY and/or the CITY. CONTRACTOR acknowledges that public disclosure
of the information contained herein may be made pursuant to the provisions of Civil Code Section 1798.24(d).

CONTRACTOR represents and warrants to SDHC, the AUTHORITY and the CITY that by providing the information
requested herein and waiving any and all privileges available under the Evidence Code of the State of California, State and
Federal Law, (to the extent of this disclosure that the information being submitted herein), the information constitutes a
"Public Record" subject to disclosure to members of the public in accordance with the provisions of California Government

Section 6250 et seq.
CONTRACTOR specifically waives, by the production of the information disclosed herein, any and all rights that

CONTRACTOR may have with respect to the information under the provisions of Government Code Section 6254 including
its applicable subparagraphs, to the extent of the disclosure herein, as well as all rights of privacy, if any, under the State and

Federal Law.

Executed this 21% __ day of _May , 2019, at San Diego, California.

CONTRACTOR

7 i /
, /e /./ , y4 g//ﬂ Lo

Ay
TS / (LA

By:

Theodore T. Miyahara

President & CEQ
Title
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CERTIFICATION

The CONTRACTOR, _San Diego Community Housing Corporation , hereby certifies that this CONTRACTOR's
Statement for Public Disclosure and the attached information/evidence of the CONTRACTOR's qualifications and financial
responsibility, including financial statements, are true and correct to the best of CONTRACTOR's knowledge and belief.

e / yavZi [/ ‘-c—f'/
LG i e S AR
i [/ iy S

By:

v

Title: _Theodore T. Miyahara, President & CEQ

Dated: 5/21/19

WARNING: 18 U.S.C. 1001 provides, among other things, that whoever knowingly and willingly makes or uses a
document or writing containing any false, fictitious or fraudulent statement or entry, in any matter within the
jurisdiction or any department or agency of the United States, shall be fined not more than $10,000 or imprisoned
for not more than five years, or both.

JURAT

A notary public or other officer completing this certificate verifies only the identity of the
individual who signed the document to which this certificate is attached, and not the truthfulness,
accuracy, or validity of that document.

State of California

County of Sﬁ AN D (ec()}, o

Subscribed and sworn to (or affirmed) before me on this [ day of /\‘\azv%— , 20 4

by Teeodace T M aalionvos personally known to me or proved to me on the basis of
)

satisfactory evidence to be the person(s} who appeared before me.

[ rcal c}w»lﬁ/

Sighéture of Notgly

SEAL

JARAY CANTY
Notary Public - California
7 San Diego Caunty
R Commission # 2269112
é QT My Comm, Expires Dec 1, 2021

[ T80
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Leaf ¢ Cole, LLP
Certified Public Acconntants
A Partnership of Professional Corporations

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Board of Directors
San Diego Community Housing Corporation

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of San Diego Community Housing
Corporation, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as of June 30, 2017, and the related
consolidated statements of activities and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated
financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
acoounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion. .

1

2810 Camino Del Rio South, Suite 200, San Diego, California 92108-3820
619.294.7200, 619.294.7077 fax, www.leaf-cole.com, leafcole@leaf-cole.com



To the Board of Directors Page 2
San Diego Community Housing Corporation

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of San Diego Community Housing Corporation as of June 30, 2017, and the changes
in their net assets and their cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters
Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements as a whole.
The accompanying supplementary information on pages 18 to 20 is presented for purposes of additional analysis
and is not a required part of the consolidated financial statements. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of
federal awards, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, and is also not a required part of the
consolidated financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and
relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements.
The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in
relation to the consolidated financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated July 2, 2018, on our
consideration of San Diego Community Housing Corporation’s internal control over financial reporting and on our
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, confracts, and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting
and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of San Diego
Community Housing Corporation’s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering San Diego
Community Housing Corporation’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Leaficole LLP

San Diego, California
July 2, 2018



SAN DIEGO COMMUNITY HOUSING CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

JUNE 30, 2017

ASSETS

Current Assets: (Notes 2 and 3)
Cash and cash equivalents
Tenant security deposits
Accounts receivable
Prepaid expenses

Total Current Assets

Noncurrent Assets: (Notes 2, 3,4, 5,6, 7, 8 and 10)
- Accounts receivable

Related party advances, net

Interest receivable

Notes receivable

Replacement reserves

Operating reserves

Deposits

Investment in limited partnerships

Property and equipment, net
Total Noncurrent Assets

TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current Liabilities: (Notes 2 and 10)
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Interest payable
Deferred revenue
Security deposits
Current portion of notes payable

Total Current Liabilities

Noncurrent Liabilities: (Notes 7, 9 and 10)
Interest payable - Residual receipts
Share of deficiency in limited partnerships
Share of deficiency in other entity
Notes payable, net
Total Noncurrent Liabilities

Total Liabilities
Commitments and Contingencies (Notes 11 and 12)

Unrestricted Net Assets (Deficit) (Note 2)
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

$ 1,796,091
101,852
18,960

6,500
1,923,403

321,548
264,469
73,282
450,000
26,203
11,564
7,753
468,699
5,632,646
7,256,164

5_ 0,179,567

$ 184,852
15,136

4,217

102,679
134,010
440,894

2,150,482
481,059
66,585
8,135,336
10,833,962

11,274,856

(2,095,289)
$__9,179,567



SAN DIEGO COMMUNITY HOUSING CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2017

Revenue and Support:
Rental income

Management fees
Other income
Resident services
Contributions
Interest income
Educational enrichment
Total Revenue and Support

Expenses:
Program Services:
Rental expenses
Affordable housing
Educational enrichment programs
Resident services
Total Program Services

Supporting Services:
Management and general
Fundraising

Total Supporting Services

Total Expenses

Change in Net Assets From Operating Activities
Nonoperating Revenue and (Expenses):

Share of gain from partnerships and other entity

Interest expense - Residual receipts

Depreciation expense

Total Nonoperating Revenue and (Expenses)

Change in Unrestricted Net Assets
Unrestricted Net Assets (Deficit) at Beginning of Year

UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS (DEFICIT) AT END OF YEAR

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

$ 1,508,138
80,667
64,425
43,297
41,300
36,191
28,775
1,802,793

929,835
145,300
103,881
41,420
1,220,436

517,925
41506
559,431
1,779,867
22,926
673,474
(162,953)
(468,573)
41,948
64,874
(2,160,163)
5 _(2,095,289)



SAN DIEGO COMMUNITY HOUSING CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

Cash Flows From QOperating Activities:
Change in unrestricted net assets $ 64,874

Adjustments to reconcile change in unrestricted net assets
to net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation 468,573
Amortization of debt issuance costs 10,965
Share of gain from partnerships and other entity (673,474)
(Increase) Decrease in:
Tenant security deposits (5,648)
Accounts receivable 115,045
Prepaid expenses 63,158
Interest receivable (36,000)
Increase (Decrease) in:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 39,456
Interest payable 162,692
Deferred revenue (1,374)
Security deposits 2,318
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 210,585
Cash Flows From Investing Activities:
Decrease in related party advances, net 64,187
Net deposits to replacement reserves (8,559)
Net deposits to operating reserves (6,012)
Deposits : (3,30D)
Partnership distributions 1,821,010
Purchase of property and equipment (296,611)
Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities 1,570,714
Cash Flows From Financing Activities:
Principal payments on notes payable (175,598)
Net Cash Used in Financing Activities (175,598)
Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents 1,605,701
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year 190,390
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR $ 1,796,091
Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information:
Cash paid for interest $ 247,822
Franchise tax $~ 800

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.



SAN DIEGO COMMUNITY HOUSING CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2017

Note 1- Organization:

The consolidated financial statements include the following entities:

San Diego Community Housing Corporation

San Diego Community Housing Corporation (SDCHC) is a California Not-For-Profit Corporation whose
mission is to increase, preserve, and improve quality affordable housing opportunities for working families.
SDCHC is dedicated to the development of affordable housing that offers a host of resident services designed to
assist residents in achieving the goal of upward economic mobility.

SDCHC provides quality affordable housing for low-income persons and working families through the sales of
homes, rental properties, construction, and affordable housing programs. SDCHC manages over 1,000 rental
units and owns and operates 6 rental properties in California: ‘

Colorado Apartments - 2 unit rental housing project located in Chula Vista.
El Cajon Apartments - 9 unit rental housing project located in El Cajon.
Glover Apartments - 4 unit renta! housing project located in Chula Vista.
Ocean View Apartments - 4 unit rental housing project located in San Diego.
Torrey Apartments - 51 unit rental housing project located in El Cajon.
Winona Apartments - 14 unit rental housing project located in San Diego.

Hacienda Townhomes, 1.td.

Hacienda Townhomes, Lid. (Hacienda Townhomes) was organized as a California Limited Partnership on
December 11, 1992, to construct and operate a 51 unit residential apartment complex located in San Diego,
California. SDHC is a 99% limited partner and Occupational Training Services (OTS), a related party, is a 1%
managing general partner.

Note 2 - Significant Accounting Policies:

Consolidated Financial Statements

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the San Diego Community Housing Corporation
and Hacienda Townhomes, Ltd., which are collectively referred to as the “Organization”. All material
intercompany transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Accounting Method

The consolidated financial statements of the Organization have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting
which is in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
(U.S. GAAP) and, accordingly, reflect all significant receivables, payables, and other liabilities.



SAN DIEGO COMMUNITY HOUSING CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
 JUNE 30, 2017

Note 2 - Significant Accounting Policies: (Continued)

Change in Accounting Principle

During 2017, the Organization adopted the provisions of Accounting Standards Update 2015-03, Simplifying the
Presentation of Debt Issuance Costs (ASU 2015-03). Under this new accounting policy, the Organization has
retrospectively presented all debt issuance costs as a direct deduction from the carrying amount of the related
obligation in the consolidated statement of financial position. Amortization of the debt issuance costs is
calculated using the interest method and is included as a component of interest expense. The effects of the
retrospective application of the accounting change on the year ended June 30, 2016 is to decrease total assets
and long-term liabilities by $62,206 in the statement of financial position.

Financial Statement Presentation

The consolidated financial statements present information regarding the financial position and activities
according to three classes of net assets: unrestricted net assets, temporarily restricted net assets and permanently
restricted net assets.

Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.

Fair Value Measurements

Fair value accounting standards define fair value, establish a framework for measuring fair value, outline a fair

value hierarchy based on inputs used to measure fair value and enhance disclosure requirements for fair value

measurements, The fair value hierarchy distinguishes between market participant assumptions based on market

data obtained from sources independent of the reporting entity (observable inputs that are classified within Level.
1 or 2 of the hierarchy) and the reporting entity’s own assumptions about market participant assumptions

(unobservable inputs classified within Level 3 of the hierarchy). The Organization had no financial instruments

at June 30, 2017.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

Bad debts are recognized on the allowance method based on historical experience and management’s evaluation
of outstanding receivables. Management believes that all accounts receivable were fully collectible; therefore,
1o allowance for doubtful accounts receivable was recorded at June 30, 2017. The allowance for related party
advances totaled $26,629 at June 30, 2017.



SAN DIEGO COMMUNITY HOUSING CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30,2017

Note 2 - Significant Accounting Policies: (Continued)

Capitalization and Depreciation

The Organization capitalizes all expenditures in excess of $1,000 for property and equipment at cost, while
donations of property and equipment are recorded at their estimated fair values. Such donations are reported as
unrestricted unless the donor has restricted the donated asset to a specific purpose. Assets donated with explicit
restrictions regarding their use and contributions of cash that must be used to acquire property and equipment are
reported as restricted. Absent donor stipulations regarding how long those donated assets must be maintained, the
Organization reports expirations of donor restrictions when the donated or acquired assets are placed in service as
instructed by the donor. The Organization reclassifies temporarily restricted net assets to unrestricted net assets at
that time. Property and equipment are depreciated using the straight-line method over the estimated useful asset
lives as follows:

Buildings and improvements 5-27.5 years
Furnishings and equipment 5 -7 years
Vehicle ‘ S years

Depreciation totaled $468,573 for the year ended June 30, 2017.

Maintenance and repairs are charged to operations as incurred. Upon sale or disposition of property or
equipment, the asset account is reduced by the cost and the accumulated depreciation account is reduced by the
depreciation taken prior to the sale. Any resultant gain or loss is then recorded as income or expense.

Impairment of Real Estate

The Organization reviews its investment in real estate for impairment whenever events and changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value of such property may not be recoverable. Recoverability is
measured by a comparison of the carrying amount of the real estate to the estimated proceeds from the eventual
disposition of the real estate. If the real estate is considered to be impaired, the impairment to be recognized is
measured at the amount by which the carrying amount of real estate exceeds the fair value of such property.
There were no impairment losses recognized in 2017.

Debt Issuance Costs

Debt issuance costs are incurred in order to obtain permanent financing for the Corporation. Debt issuance costs
are amortized on a straight-line basis over the term of the related loan, which approximates the interest method.
Unamortized deferred financing costs are presented as a direct reduction from the carrying value of the related
obligation to which such costs relate. Amortization of debt issuance costs is reported as a component of interest
expense and totaled $10,965 for the year ended June 30, 2017.

Compensated Absences

Accumulated unpaid vacation and other employee benefit amounts totaling $18,695 at June 30,2017 are accrued when
incurred and included in accounts payable and accrued expenses.



SAN DIEGO COMMUNITY HOUSING CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30,2017

Note 2 - Significant Accounting Policies: (Continued)

Revenue Recognition

Contributions are recognized when the donor makes a promise to give to the Organization that is, in substance,
unconditional. Contributions that are restricted by the donor are reported as increases in unrestricted net assets
if the restrictions expire in the fiscal year in which the contributions are recognized. All other donor-restricted
contributions are reported as increases in temporarily or permanently restricted net assets depending on the
nature of the restrictions. When a restriction expires, temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to
unrestricted net assets.

Rental revenue attributable to residential leases is recorded when due from residents, generally upon the first
day of each month. Leases are for periods of up to one year, with rental payments due monthly. Other income
includes fees for late payments, cleaning, damages, laundry facilities and other charges and is recorded when
earned.

Deferred revenue is defined as income received prior to the performance or to which the income is earned and
is recorded as a liability. Deferred revenue is reduced and recorded as income as the income is earned. Deferred
revenue totaled $4,217 at June 30, 2017. :

Donated Services and Support

The Organization utilizes the services of many volunteers throughout the year. This contribution of services
by the volunteers is not recognized in the consolidated financial statements unless the services received
(a) create or enhance nonfinancial assets or (b) require specialized skills which are provided by individuals
possessing those skills and would typically need to be purchased if not provided by donation. The donated
services for the year ended June 30, 2017, did not meet the requirements above, therefore, no amounts were
recognized in the consolidated financial statements.

Allocated Expenses

The Organization allocates its expenses on a functional basis among its various programs and supporting
services. Expenditures which can be identified with a specific program or support services are allocated directly,
according to their natural expenditure classification. Costs that are common to several functions are allocated
among the program and supporting services on the basis of time records, space utilized and estimates made by
the Organization’s management. ‘

Income Taxes

SDCHC is a public charity and is exempt from income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue
Code and Section 23701(d) of the California Revenue and Taxation Code. SDCHC believes that it has
appropriate support for any tax positions taken, and as such, does not have any uncertain tax positions that are
material to the consolidated financial statements. SDCHC is not a private foundation.



SAN DIEGO COMMUNITY HOUSING CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30,2017

Note 2 - Significant Accounting Policies: (Continued)
Income Taxes (Continued)

No provision or benefit for income taxes for Hacienda Townhomes, Ltd. Has been included in these consolidated
financial statements since taxable income (loss) passes through to, and is reportable by, the Partners individually.

SDCHC’s Return of Organization Exempt from Income Tax for the years ended June 30, 2017, 2016, 2015 and
2014, and the partnership’s tax returns for the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015, 2014 and 2013,
respectively are subject to examination by the Internal Revenue Service and State taxing authorities, generally
the three to four years after the returns were filed.

Concentration of Credit Risk

The Organization maintains its cash in bank deposit accounts which, at times, may exceed federally insured
limits. The Organization has not experienced any losses in such accounts. The Organization believes it is not
exposed to any significant credit risk on cash and cash equivalents.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the Organization considers all highly liquid
investments available for current use with an initial maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

Subsequent Events

The Organization has evaluated events and transactions for potential recognition or disclosure through July 2, 2018,
the date the consolidated financial statements were available for issuance, and concluded that there were no events
or transactions that needed to be disclosed.

Note 3 - Accounts Receivable:

Accounts receivable consist of the following at June 30, 2017:

Related Parties: .
Bridgeport Properties, L.P. $ 321,548
Ken Tal Senior Partners, L.P. 4,237
Mountain View Properties, Ltd. 4,167
Total Related Parties 329,952
Other:
Rent receivable 9,959
City of Chula Vista 597
Total Other ' 10,556

$ 340,508

10



SAN DIEGO COMMUNITY HOUSING CORPORATION
- NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2017

Note 3 - Accounts Receivable: (Continued)

Consolidated Financial Statement Presentation:

Current:
Due in less than one year by 18,960
Noncurrent:
Due in more than one year 321,548
Total Accounts Receivable $ 340,508

Note 4 - Related Party Advances:

The Organization has advanced funds to Neighborhood CDC Construction and Occupational Training Services,
related parties. The Organization has a 40% ownership interest.in Neighborhood CDC Construction (Note 10).
SDCHC is an affiliate of Occupational Training Services. The related party advances consist of the following at
June 30, 2017:

Related party advances due in one to five years $ 291,098
Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts (26,629)
Total Related Party Advances, Net $ 264,469

Note 5 - Notes Receivable:

Notes receivable consist of the following at June 30, 2017:

Note receivable from Non Better, LLC, A California Limited Liability
Company, in the amount of $300,000 with interest at a rate of 8% per
annum. The note is due on June 30, 2018 and is secured by a deed of trust
on 6800 Mallard Street. Interest receivable totaled $48,855 at June 30,
2017. $ 300,000

Note receivable from Non Better, LLC, A California Limited Liability
Company, in the amount of $150,000 with interest at a rate of 8% per
annum. The note is due on June 30, 2018 and is secured by a deed of trust
on 6800 Mallard Street. Interest receivable totaled $24,427 at June 30,

2017, 150,000
Total Notes Receivable $ 450,000

A member of the Board of Directors of the Organization has an ownership interest in Non-Beter, LLC.

11



SAN DIEGO COMMUNITY HOUSING CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2017

Note 6 - Reserves:

The Organization is required to fund and maintain reserve accounts in accordance with Partnership and Loan
Agreements. The following shows the balances in the reserves at June 30, 2017:

Replacement Operating
Entity Reserves Reserves
QOcean View Apartments $ 17,257 $ -
Glover Apartments 5,343 10,033
Hacienda Townhomes, Ltd. 1,698 -
Colorado Apartments 1,409 1,531
Torrey Apartments 496

526203 $__ 11564

Note 7 - Investment in Limited Partnerships:

The Organization owns general and limited partoer interests in limited partnerships accounted for on the equity
method. The following are the balances in the Organization’s capital accounts at June 30, 2017:

Investment in Limited Partnerships:

General Partner:
Market Creek, LLC (0.1889%) $ 7,574
Bridgeport Properties, L.P. (0.001%) 33

Limited Partner:
Bridgepoint Properties, L.P. (4.285%) 461,092
Total Investment in Limited Partnerships $ 468,699

Share of Deficiency in Limited Partnerships:

General Partner:
Bridgeport - Normal Heights, L.P. (0.043%) $ 67,181
Bridgeport - City Heights, L.P. (0.043%) 63,963
Bridgeport - North Park, L.P. (0.043%) 52,448
Bridgeport - Linda Vista, L.P. (0.043%) 28,221
Ken Tal Senior Partners, L.P. (0.005%) 295

Limited Partner:
Bridgeport - City Heights, L.P. (4.243%) 135,555
Bridgeport - Normal Heights, L.P. (4.243%) 85,580
Bridgeport - North Park, L.P. (4.243%) 32,604
Bridgeport - Linda Vista, L.P. (4.243%) 15,212
Total Share of Deficiency in Limited Partnerships $ 481,059

12



SAN DIEGO COMMUNITY HOUSING CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2017

Note 7 - Investment in Limited Partnerships: (Continued)

The Organization provided asset management, educational enrichment and resident services to these partnerships
for which it earned the following amounts for the year ended June 30, 2017:

Management Educational Resident
Fees Enrichment Services Total
| Mountain View Properties, Ltd. $ 9,630 $ 28,775 § 43297 § 81,702
Bridgeport Properties, L.P. 71,037 - - 71,037
$ 80,667 % 28775 % 43297 §$ 152,739
Note 8 - Property and Equipment:
Property and equipment consist of the following at June 30, 2017:
Land $ 1922374
Buildings and improvements . 9,758,696
Furnishings and equipment 698,995
Vehicle : 25,805
Subtotal 12,405,870
Less: Accumulated depreciation (6,773,224)
Property and Equipment, Net $ 5,632,646

Note 9 - Share of Deficiency in Other Entity:

The Organization owns 40% of Neighborhood CDC Construction, a Corporation, which is accounted for on the
equity method. The Organization’s share of the deficiency in other entity totaled $66,585 at June 30, 2017.

Note 10 - Notes Payable:

Notes payable consist of the following at June 30, 2017:

Torrey Apartments

Note payable held by Western Alliance in the original amount of
$3,500,000. Monthly payments of $17,960 including interest at the greater
of 4.5% or the LIBOR rate at closing, plus 275 basis points (4.53% at
June 30, 2017) are due through June 2020. Interest during the secondary
period, June 2020 until maturity in June 2025, will be calculated using the
greater of 4.50% or LIBOR rate in effect at the commencement of the
secondary period, plus 275 basis points. The note is secured by a deed of
trust on 228 Chambers Street. $ 3,387,536

13



SAN DIEGO COMMUNITY HOUSING CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2017

Note 10 - Notes Payable: (Continued)

Winona Apartments

Note payable held by JP Morgan Chase Bank, N.A. in the original amount
of $590,000. Monthly payments of $3,660 including interest at 6.32% are
due through July 2020. The note is secured by a deed of trust on 3845
Winona Avenue. Interest payable totaled $2,489 at June 30,2017. $ 472,607

El Cajon Apartments

Note payable held by Neighborhood National Bank in the original amount
of $686,250. Monthly payments of $4,246 including interest at 6.50% are
due through January 2020. The note is secured by a deed of trust on 735 -
739 El Cajon Blvd. 531,777

Ocean View Apartments

Note payable to the San Diego Housing Commission in the original amount
_of $127,345. The note bears interest at 3% per annum. Annual payments
of principal and interest are payable only from 50% of “residual receipts,”
as defined in the loan agreement through July 2065. Secured by a deed of
trust on 3992 Ocean View Blvd. Interest payable totaled $91,243 at June '
30,2017. 127,345

Note payable to the San Diego Housing Commission in the original amount
of $80,183. The note bears interest at 3% per annum. Annual payments of
principal and interest are payable only from 50% of “residual receipts,” as
defined in the loan agreement through July 2065. Secured by a deed of trust
on 3992 Ocean View Blvd. Interest payable totaled $58,367 at June 30,
2017. 80,183

Note payable to the San Diego Housing Commission in the original amount
of $300,000. The note bears interest at 3% per annum. Annual payments
of principal and interest are payable only from 50% of “residual receipts,”
as defined in the loan agreement through July 2065. Secured by a deed of
trust on 3992 Ocean View Blvd. Interest payable totaled $56,049 at June

30, 2017. 296,922
Total Ocean View Apartments 504,450
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SAN DIEGO COMMUNITY HOUSING CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2017

Note 10 - Notes Payable: (Continued)

Colorado Apartments

Note payable to the City of Chula Vista in the original amount of $331,310.
The note bears interest at 3% per annum. Annual payments of principal and
interest are payable only from “residual receipts” as defined in the loan
agreement through August 2065. Secured by a deed of trust on 809
Colorado Avenue. Interest payable totaled $72,080 at June 30, 2017. $ 331,310

Glover Apartiments

Note payable to the City of Chula Vista in the original amount of $668,690.
The note bears interest at 3% per annum. Annual payments of principal and
interest are payable only from “residual receipts” as defined in the loan
agreement through October 2065. Secured by a deed of trust on 563 - 567
Glover Avenue. Interest payable totaled $124,630 at June 30, 2017. 668,690

Hacienda Townhomes

Note payable held by Berkadia Commercial Mortgage in the original
amount of $745,000. Monthly payments of $5,113 including interest at
6.01% through the year 2019. Interest readjusted in January, 2010 and will
readjust again in January, 2020 to the lower of the lender’s current market
rate for similar transactions or an annual rate 2.25% above the weekly
average yield on U.S. Treasury Securities. Any unpaid principal and
interest are due in January 2025. Secured by a first deed of trust on 350 17%
Street. Interest payable totaled $1,868 at June 30, 2017. 372,969

Note payable held by Citicorp Mortgage, Inc. in the original amount of
$505,501 and bears no interest provided the property securing the note is
not transferred to a party not approved by the lender and the property and
its tenants comply with the affordable restrictions. The note matures in
January 2035 and is secured by a second deed of trust on 350 17% Street. 505,501

Note payable held by the San Diego Housing Commission in the original
amount of $748,197 and bears interest at 4.5%. Principal and accrued
interest are due and payable at the earlier of the project generating sufficient
residual receipts or November 2047. Secured by a third deed of trust on
350 17% Street. Interest payable totaled $1,503,097 at June 30, 2017. 748,197
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SAN DIEGO COMMUNITY HOUSING CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STAT EMENTS
JUNE 30,2017

Note 10 - Notes Payable: (Continued)

Hacienda Townhomes

Note payable held b

y Civic San Diego, the successor agency to the

Redevelopment Agency of the City of San Diego, in the original amount of
$363,196 and bears interest at 3% with all principal and accrued interest

due and payable July

2048. Principal payments may be deferred at the

discretion of Civic San Diego. Secured by a fourth deed of trust on 350 17%

Street. Interest payable totaled $255,795 at June 30, 2017. $ 363,196
Note payable held by Mercy Housing, Inc. in the original amount of
$436,854 bears no interest and is payable annually to the extent that
revenues exceed expenses including debt service and the partnership
management fees. Any unpaid principal is due September 2024. Secured
by a fifth deed of trust on 350 17" Street. 436,854
Total Hacienda Townhomes 2,426,717
Total Notes Payable 8,323,087
Less: Unamortized debt issuance costs (53,241)
Notes Payable, Net $ 8,269,846
Debt issuance costs totaled $113,710, less accumulated amortization of $60,469 at June 30, 2017.
Future principal payments on the notes payable are as follows:
Years Ended
June 30
2018 $ 134,010 .
2019 141,898
2020 627,059
2021 137,610
2022 145,055
Thereafter 7,137,455
Total $ 8,323,087
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SAN DIEGO COMMUNITY HOUSING CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2017

Note 11 - Commitments:

Operating Leases

SDCHC leases office space under operating lease agreements through August 31, 2018. Occupancy expense
included in the consolidated statement of activities totaled $81,702 for the year ended June 30, 2017.

Future minimum lease payments under the leases are as follows:

Years Ended
June 30
2018 $ 81,248
2019 14,174

$ 95,422

Employee Benefit Plan

SDCHC has established a 401(k) defined contribution plan (the «“Plan”) covering employees who have completed
four months of service and have attained age 18. Employees may deferup to 17% of their annual compensation,
not to exceed the annual amount allowed by law. SDCHC contributes a matching contribution of 50% of the
first 6% of employee salary deferrals. SDCHC contributed $6,082 to the Plan for the year ended June 30, 2017.

Note 12 - Litigation:

Legal claims and lawsuits arise from time to time in the normal course of business. There are pending lawsuits in
which the Organization’s management is involved. The Organization’s management and legal counsel estimate
that the potential claims against the Organization not covered by insurance, resulting from such litigation would not
materially affect the operations or financial condition of the Organization.
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SAN PIEGO COMMUNITY HOUSING CORPORATION
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

Federat Agency or Passed Total
CFDA Pass-Throngh Through to Federal Federal
Federal Grants/Pass-Through Grantor/Propram Tidle Number Number Subrecipients Expenditures Expenditures
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development:
Pass-Through Programs From:
Community Development Block Grants/Botitlement Grants: 14.218
City of Chula Vista N/A $ -8 1,000,000 $ 1,000,000
San Diego Housing Commission N/A - 206,922 296,922
Total Community Development Block Grants/Entitlement Grants - 1296922 1,296,922
HOME Investment Partnerships Program: 14,239
San Diego Housing Commission NA - 127,345 127,345
Total Pass-Through Programs - 1,424,267 1,424,267
Total U.S. Department of Housing
and Urban Development - 1,424.267 1,424,267
Total Expenditures of Federal Awards $ - 8 1424267 §__ 1,424,267

Note 1 - Basis of Presentation:

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the Schedule) includes the federal award activity of
San Diego Community Housing Corporation under programs of the federal government for the year ended
June 30, 2017. The information in this Schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S.
Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of
the operations of San Diego Community Housing Corporation, it is not intended to and does pot present the financial
position, changes in net assets, or cash flows of San Diego Community Housing Corporation.

Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies:

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such expenditures are
recognized following, as applicable, either the cost principles contained in OMB Circular A-122, Cost Principles
for Non-Profit Organizations ot the cost principles contained in Uniform Guidance wherein certain types of
expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement. Pass through entity identifying numbers are
presented where available.

San Diego Community Housing Corporation has elected not to use the 10-percent de minimis indirect cost rate as
allowed under Uniform Guidance.
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SAN DIEGO COMMUNITY HOUSING CORPORATION
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

Note 3 - Loan Programs:

The following is the activity of the loans payable for the year ended June 30, 2017:

Loans Awarded Loan Principal
Loans for the Year Repaid for the Loans
CFDA Outstanding at Ended Year Ended OQutstanding at
Number Program Name June 30, 2016 Tune 30, 2017 June 30, 2017 June 30, 2017
14218 Community Development Block Grants/Entiflement Grants:
City of Chula Vista : $ 1,000,000 $ - 3 - 8 1,000,000
San Diego Housing Commission 296.922 - - 296,922
$ 1,296922 § -3 - 8 1,296,922
14.239 HOME Investment Partnerships Program:
San Diego Housing Commisgion $ 127345 % - 3 - 3 127,345
Total Loans b3 1424,267 § -8 - 8 1,424,267
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Leaf ¢ Cole, LLP
Cersificd Public Accountants
A Pavsnership of Professional Corporations

Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control Over
Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters
Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in
Accordance With Government Auditing Standards

To the Board of Directors
San Diego Community Housing Corporation

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States, the financial statements of San Diego Community Housing Corporation, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as of June 30, 2017, and the related consolidated
statements of activities and cash flows for the year then ended and the related notes to the consolidated financial
statements, and have issued our report thereon dated July 2, 2018.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the consolidated financial statements, we considered San Diego Community
Housing Corporation’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the consolidated financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of San Diego Community Housing
Corporation’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of San Diego
Community Housing Corporation’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough
to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and
was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we
consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
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Leaf & Cole, LLP
Certified Public Acconntants
A Partnership of Professional Corporations

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Board of Directors _ :
San Diego Community Housing Corporation

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of San Diego Community Housing
Corporation, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as of June 30, 2016, and the related
consolidated statements of activities and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated
financial statements.-

Management's Responsibiiity for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the

consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s‘judgment, including the

assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation

and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate

in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal

control, Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well

as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.
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To the Board of Directors ) Page 2
San Diego Community Housing Corporation '

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of San Diego Community Housing Corporation as of June 30, 2016, and the changes
in their net assets and their cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

Other Muatters
Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements as a whole.
The accompanying supplementary information on pages 20 to 21 is presented for purposes of additional analysis
and is not a required part of the consolidated financial statements. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of
federal awards, as required Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, is presented for purposes of additional
analysis and is not a required part of the consolidated financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of
management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the consolidated financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial statements themselves, and other additional
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion,
the information is fairly stateéd, in all material respects, in relation to the consolidated financial statements as a
whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standdrds

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 3, 2017, on our
consideration of San Diego Community Housing Corporation’s internal control over financial reporting and on our
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other
matters. The pufpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting
and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards in considering San Diego Community Housing Corporation’s internal control over financial
reporting and compliance.

Leaficole LLF

San Diego, California
October 3, 2017



SAN DIEGO COMMUNITY HOUSING CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

JUNE 30, 2016

ASSETS

Current Assets: (Notes 2 and 3)
Cash and cash equivalents
Tenant security deposits
Accounts receivable
Prepaid expenses

Total Current Assets

Noncurrent Assets: (Notes 2,3,4,5,6,7,8,%and 11)
Accourts receivable
Related party advances, net
Interest receivable
Notes receivable
Replacement reserves
Operating reserves
Deposits
Investment in limited partnerships
Property and equipment, net
Loan fees, net
Total Noncurrent Assets

TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current Liabilities: (Notes 2 and 11)
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Interest payable
Deferred revenue
Security deposits
Current portion of notes payable

Total Current Liabilities

Noncurrent Liabilities: (Notes 8, 10 and 11)
Interest payable - Residual receipts
Share of deficiency in limited partnerships
Share of deficiency in other entity
Notes payable, net of current portion
Total Noncurrent Liabilities

Total Liabilities

Commitments and Contingencies (Notes 12 and 13)

Unrestricted Net Assets (Deficit) (Notes 2 and 14)
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

$ 190,390
96,204
246,918
69,658
603,170

208,635
328,656
37,282
450,000
17,644
5,552
4,452
1,640,857
5,716,886
151,929
8,561,893

59,165,063

$ 145,396
9,153

5,591

100,361
175,661
436,162

1,993,773
487,139
85,127
8,323,025
10,889,064

11,325,226

(2,160,163)
$ 9,165,063



SAN DIEGO COMMUNITY HOUSING CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

Revenue and Support:

Rental income $ 1,496,385
Management fees 660,194
Educational enrichment 47,131
Other income _ , . 38,331
Resident services 36,000
Interest income . 35,997
Contributions . ' 5,000 -
Total Revenue and Support 2,319,038

Expenses:
Program Services:

Rental expenses 678,506
Educational enrichment programs ‘ A 101,879
Affordable housing 100,408
Resident services 62,860

Total Program Services 943,653

Supporting Services:

Management and general 596,221

Fundraising 31,568

Total Supporting Services ' 627,789

Total Expenses : ' 1,571,442

Change in Net Assets From Operating Activities 747,596

Nonoperating Revenue and (Expenses):

Depreciation expense : ‘ (425,987)
Interest expense - Residual receipts (150,214)
Share of loss from partnerships and other entity . (32,276)
Amortization expense " (11,049)
Total Nonoperating Revenue and (Expenses) - (619,526)

Change in Unrestricted Net Assets 128,070

- Unrestricted Net Assets (Deficit) at Beginning of Year, as Restated (Note 14) (2,288,233) .

UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS (DEFICIT) AT END OF YEAR § (2,160,163)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.



SAN DIEGO COMMUNITY HOUSING CORi’ORAT ION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

Cash Flows From Operating Activities:

Change in unrestricted net assets ' $

Adjustments to reconcile change in unrestricted net assets
to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation -
Amortization
Share of loss from partnerships and other entity
(Increase) Decrease in:
Tenant security deposits
Accounts receivable
Prepaid expenses
Interest receivable
Property inventory
Increase (Decrease) in:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Interest payable
Deferred revenue
Security deposits
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Cash Flows From Investing Activities:
Increase in related party advances, net
Net withdrawals from replacement reserves
Net withdrawals from operating reserves
Partnership distributions
Partnership contributions _
Purchase of property and equipment

128,070

425,987
11,049
32,276

20,551
(285,933)
(69,658)
(36,000)

5,750

82,222
145,091

2,221)
(20,920)

436,264

(151,079)
110,347
2,048
422
(1,272,089)

(418,810)

Net Cash Used in Investing Activities (1,729,161)
Cash Flows From Financing Activities:
Due to related party (62,505)
Principal payments on notes payable (191,150)
Net Cash Used in Financing Activities (253,655)
Net Decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents (1,546,552)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year 1,736,942
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR $ 190,390
Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information:
Cash paid for interest 3 264,361
Franchise tax $ 800

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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SAN DIEGO COMMUNITY HOUSING CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30,2016

Note 1- Organization:

- The consolidated financial statements include the following entities:

San Diego Community Housing Corporation

San Diego Community Housing Corporation (SDCHC) is a California Not-For-Profit Corporation whose
mission is to increase, preserve, and improve quality affordable housing opportunities for working families.
SDCHC is dedicated to the development of affordable housing that offers a host of resident services designed to
assist residents in achieving the goal of upward economic mobility.

SDCHC provides quality affordable housing for low-income persons and working families through the sales of
homes, rental properties, construction, and affordable housing programs. SDCHC manages over 1,000 rental
units and owns and operates 6 rental properties in California: o

Colorado Apartments - 2 unit rental housing project located in Chula Vista.
El Cajon Apartments - 9 unit rental housing project located in El Cajon.
Glover Apartments - 4 unit reatal housing project located in Chula Vista,
Ocean View Apartments - 4 unit rental housing project located in San Diego.
Torrey Apartments - 51 unit rental housing project located in El Cajon.
Winona Apartments - 14 unit rental housing project located in San Diego.

- -* - - - o

Hacienda Townhomes, Ltd.

Hacienda Townhomes, Ltd. (Hacienda Townhomes) was organized as a California Limited Partnership on
December 11, 1992, to construct and operate a 51 unit residential apartment complex located in San Diego,
California. SDHC is a 99% limited partner and Occupational Training Services (OTS), a related party, is a 1%
managing general partner,

Note 2 - Significant Accounting Policies:

Consolidated Financial Statements

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the San Diego Community Housing Corporation
and Hacienda Townhomes, Ltd., which are collectively referred to as the “Organization”. All material
intercompany transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Method of Accounting

The consolidated financial statements of the Organization have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting
which is in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
(U.S. GAAP) and, accordingly, reflect all significant receivables, payables, and other liabilities.

Financial Statement Presentation

A

The consolidated financial statements present information regarding the financial position and activities
according to three classes of net assets: unrestricted net assets, temporarily restricted net assets and permanently
restricted net assets.

6



SAN DIEGO COMMUNITY HOUSING CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2016

Note 2 - Significant Accounting Policies: (Continued)

~ Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and
the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from
those estimates.

Fair Value Measurements

Fair value accounting standards define fair value, establish a framework for measuring fair value, outline a fair
value hierarchy based on inputs used to measure fair value and enhance disclosure requirements for fair value
measurements. The fair value hierarchy distinguishes between market participant assumptions based on market
data obtained from sources independent of the reporting entity (observable inputs that are classified within Level
1 or 2 of the hierarchy) and the reporting entity’s own assumptions about market participant assumptions
(unobservable inputs classified within Level 3 of the hierarchy). The Organization had no financial instruments
at June 30, 2016. '

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

Bad debts are recognized on the allowance method based on historical experience and management’s evaluation
of outstanding accounts receivable. Management believes that all accounts receivable and related party advances
were fully collectible; therefore, no allowance for doubtful accounts receivable and relate party advances was
recorded at June 30, 2016.

Capitalization and Depreciation

The Organization capitalizes all expenditures in excess of $1,000 for property and equipment at cost, while
donations of property and equipment are recorded at their estimated fair values. Such donations are reported as
unrestricted unless the donor has restricted the donated asset to a specific purpose. Assets donated with explicit
restrictions regarding their use and contributions of cash that must be used to acquire property and equipment are
reported as restricted. Absent donor stipulations regarding how long those donated assets must be maintained, the
Organization reports expirations of donor restrictions when the donated or acquired assets are placed in service as
instructed by the donor. The Organization reclassifies temporarﬂy restricted net assets to unrestricted net assets at
that time, Property and equlpment are depreciated using the straight-line method over the estimated useful asset
hves as follows: '

Buildings and improvements 5-27.5 years
Furnishings and equipment 5 -7 years
Vehicle 5 years

Depreciation totaled $425,987 for the yéar ended June 30, 2016.



SAN DIEGO COMMUNITY HOUSING CORPORATION -
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE.30, 2016

Note 2 - Significant Accounting Policies: (Continued)

" Capitalization and Depreciation (Continued)

Maintenance and repairs are charged to operations as incurred. Upon sale or disposition of property or
equipment, the asset account is reduced by the cost and the accumulated depreciation account is reduced by the
depreciation taken prior to the sale. Any resultant gain or loss is then recorded as income or expense.

Impairment of Real Estate

The Organization reviews its investment in real estate for impairment whenever events and changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value of such property may not be recoverable. Recoverability is
measured by a comparison of the catrying amount of the real estate to the estimated proceeds from the eventual
disposition of the real estate. If the real estate is considered to be impaired, the impairment to be recognized is
measured at the amount by which the carrying amount of real estate exc¢eeds the fair value of such property.
There were no impairment losses recognized in 2016.

Amortization

Loan fees totaling $209,020, net of accumulated amortization of $57,091 at June 30, 2016 are recorded at cost and
amortized on the straight-line method. Amortization expense totaled $11,049 for the year ended June 30, 2016.

Compensated Absences

Accumul_a_ted unpaid vacation and other employee benefit amounts totaling $12,897 at June 30,2016 are accrued when
Jincurred and included in accounts payable and accrued expenses.

Revenue Recognition

Contributions are recognized when the donor makes a promise to give to the Organization that is, in substance,
unconditional. Contributions that are restricted by the donor are reported as increases in unrestricted net assets
if the restrictions expire in the fiscal year in which the contributions are recognized. All other donor-restricted
contributions are reported as increases in temporarily or permanently restricted net assets depending on the nature
‘of the restrictions. When a restriction expires, temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to unrestricted
net assets. '

Rental revenue attributable to residential leases is recorded when due from residents, generally upon the first
day of each month. Leases are for periods of up to one year, with rental payments due monthly. Other income
includes fees for late payments, cleaning, damages, laundry facilities and other charges and is recorded when
earned. '

Deferred revenue is defined as income received prior to the performance or to which the income is earned and
is recorded as a liability. Deferred revenue is reduced and recorded as income as the income is earned. Deferred
‘revenue totaled $5,591 at June 30, 2016.



SAN DIEGO COMMUNITY HOUSING CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2016

Note 2 - Significant Accounting Policies: (Continued)

Donated Services and Support

The Organization utilizes the services of many volunteers throughout the year. This contribution of services
by the volunteers is not recognized in the consolidated financial statements unless the services received
(a) create or enhance nonfinancial assets or (b) require specialized skills which are provided by individuals
possessing those skills and would typically need to be purchased if not provided by donation. The donated
services for the year ended June 30, 2016, did not meet the requirements above, therefore, no amounts were
recognized in the consolidated financial statements.

Allocated Expenses

The Organization allocates its expenses on a functional basis among its various programs and supporting
services. Expenditures which can be identified with a specific program or support services are allocated directly,
according to their natural expenditure classification. Costs that are common to several functions are allocated
among the program and supporting services on the basis of time records, space utilized and estimates made by
the Organization’s management.

Income Taxes

SDCHC is a public charity and is exempt from income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue
Code and Section 23701(d) of the California Revenue and Taxation Code. SDCHC believes that it has
appropriate support for any tax positions taken, and as such, does not have any uncertain tax positions that are
material to the consolidated financial statements. SDCHC is not a private foundation.

No provision or benefit for income taxes for Hacienda Townhomes, Ltd. has becn included in these consolidated
financial statements since taxable income (loss) passes through to, and is reportable by, the Partners individually.

SDCHC’s Return of Organization Exempt from Income Tax for the years ended June 30, 2016, 2015, 2014 and
2013, and the partnership’s tax returns for the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014, 2013 and 2012,
respectively are subject to examination by the Internal Revenue Service and State taxing authorities, generally
the three to four years after the returns were filed.

Concentration of Credit Risk

The Organization maintains its cash in bank deposit accounts which, at times, may exceed federally insured
limits. The Organization has not experienced any losses in such accounts. The Or ganization believes it is not
exposed to any significant credit risk 6n cash and cash equivalents,

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the Organization considers all highly liquid
investments available for current use with an initial maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.



SAN DIEGO COMMUNITY HOUSING CORPORATION
NOTES TO CON SOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30,2016

Note 2 - Significant Accounting Policies: (Continued)

Subsequent Events

The Organization has evaluated events and transactions for potential recognition or disclosure through October 3,
2017, the date the consolidated financial statements were available for issuance, and concluded that there were no
events or transactions that needed to be disclosed, except as described in Note 15.

Note 3 - Accounts Receivable:

Accounts receivable consist of the following at June 30, 2016:

Related Parties:
Mountain View Properties, Ltd. ' $ 221,982
Bridgeport Properties, L.P. 208,635
Ken Tal Senior Partpers, L.P. : 12,710
Neighborhood CDC Construction . . . 2,799
Total Related Parties : 446,126
Other:
Rent receivable 9,427

Total Accounts Receivable 3 455,553

Consolidated Financial Statement Presentation:

Current:
Due in less than one year $ 246,918
Noncurrent:
Due in more than one year 208,635
Total Accounts Receivable $ 455,553

Note 4 - Related Paljtv Advances:

The Organization has advanced funds to Neighborhood CDC and Occupational Training Services, related parties.
The Organization has a 40% ownership interest in Neighborhood CDC Construction (Note 10). SDCHC is an
affiliate of Occupational Training Services. The related party advances consist of the following at June 30, 2016:

Related party advances due in one to five years $ 355,285
Less: Discounts to present value ‘ (26,629)
Total Related Party Advances, Net $ 328,656

The related party advances have been discounted to their present value using a discount rate of 1.49% to 6.0% at
June 30, 2016.
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SAN DIEGO COMMUNITY HOUSING CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2016 ‘

Note 5 - Notes Receivable:

" Notes receivable consist of the following at June 30, 2016:

Note receivable from Non Better, LLC, A California Limited Liability

Company, in the amount of $300,000 with interest at a rate of 8% per

annum. The note is due on July 31, 2017 and is secured by a deed of trust :

on 6800 Mallard Street. Accrued interest totaled $24,855 at June 30, 2016. $ 300,000

Note receivable from Non Better, LLC, A California Limited Liability
Company, in the amount of $150,000 with interest at a rate of 8% per .
annum. The note is due on July 31, 2017 and is secured by a deed of trust

on 6800 Mallard Street. Accrued interest totaled $12, 427 af June 30, 2016. 150,000
Total Notes Receivable $ 450,000 -

Note 6 - Replacement Reserves:

Hacienda Townhomes, Ltd.

The Partnership has established a replacement reserve to fund capital improvements of the Project in accordance -
with the provisions of the Partnership Agreement. The initial reserve fund was to be established at $230 per
unit for atotal of $11,730. Commencing in 1995 and continuing in each calendar year thereafter throughout the
term of the Partnership, the General Partner is required to deposit 104% of the amount deposited in the prior
year. For the purposes of these deposits, Hacienda Townhomes considers September 1995 to be the start date
of these requirements. The following shows the activity in the replacement reserve for the year ended June 30,
2016:

Balance at Beginning of Year $ 21,928
Add: Deposits _ 44,500
Interest income 86
Less: Withdrawals (66,214)
Bank fees (36)
Balance at End of Year , $ 264
Winona Apartments

Winona Apartments is required to maintain a replacement reserve account to be used for capital improvements
to the property in accordance with a replacement reserve agreement with JP Morgan Chase. The following
shows the activity in the replacement reserve for the year ended June 30, 2016:

Balance at Beginning of Year $ 23,599
Add: Interest Income ‘ 7
Less: Withdrawals (23,599

Balance at End of Year $ 7

11



SAN DIEGO COMMUNITY HOUSING CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2016

Note 6 - Replacement Rese;'ves: (Continued)

Torrey Apartments

Restricted funds are held by Bank of America to be used for replacement of property in accordance with the note
payable. The following shows the activity in the replacement reserve for the year ended June 30, 2016:

Balance at Beginning of Year - % 50,108
Add: Deposits 14,300
Interest income -2
Less: Withdrawals (63,711)
Balance at End of Year - $ 699
Colorado Apartments

Colorado Apartments is required to maintain a replacement reserve account to be used for capital improvements
to the property in accordance with the note payable with the City of Chula Vista. The following shows the
activity in the replacement reserve for the year ended June 30, 2016:

Balance at Beginning of Year : , $ 7,883
Add: Interestincome 6
- Less: Withdrawals ‘ : (4,142)
Balance at End of Year ‘ $ 3,747
" Glover Apartments

Glover Apartments is required to maintain a replacement reserve account to be used for capital improvements to
the property in accordance with the note payable with the City of Chula Vista. The following shows the activity
in the replacement reserve for the year ended June 30, 2016:

Balance at Beginning of Year ‘ $ 17,484
Add: Deposits - 6,000
Interest income : 12
Less: Withdrawals (18,796)
Balance at End of Year A $ 4,700

Qcean View Apartments

Ocean View Apartments is required to maintain a replacement reserve account to be used for capital
improvements to the property in accordance with the note payable with the San Diego Housing Commission.
The following shows the activity in the replacement reserve for the year ended June 30, 2016:

Balance at Beginning of Year $ 6,989
Add: Deposits 12,000
Interest income 6
Less: Withdrawals ' (10,768)
Balance at End of Year : ' $ 8,227

12



SAN DIEGO COMMUNITY HOUSING CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2016

Note 7 - Operating Reserves:

Colorado Apartments

Colorado Apartments is required to maintain an operating reserve account in accordance with an agreement with
the City of Chula Vista. The following shows the activity in the operating reserve for the year ended June 30,

2016: :
Balance at Beginning of Year $§ - 1,532
Add: Interest income 1
Less: Withdrawals (5)
Balance at End of Year $ 1,528

Glover Apartments

Glover Apartments is required to maintain an operating reserve account in accordance with an agreement with
the City of Chula Vista. The following shows the activity in the operating reserve for the year ended June 30,

2016:
Balance at Beginning of Year $ 6,068
Add: Additions 2,000
Interest income "5
Less: Withdrawals (4,049
Balance at End of Year : $ 4,024

Note 8 - Investment in Limited Partnerships:

The Organization owns general and limited partner interests in limited partnerships accounted for on the equity
method. The following are the balances in the Organization’s capital accounts at June 30, 2016:

Investment in Limited Partnerships:

General Partner:
Mountain View Properties, Ltd. (0.01%) $ 1,172,118
Market Creek, LLC (0.1889%) : 7,576
Bridgeport Properties, L.P. (0.001%) : 33
Limited Partner: _
Bridgepoint Properties, L.P. (4.285%) ' . 461,130
Total Investment in Limited Partnerships ) $ 1,640,857

- 13



SAN DIEGO COMMUNITY HOUSING CORPORATION
N OTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30,2016

Note 8 - Investment in Limited Partnerships:

Share of Deficiency in Limited Partnerships:
General Partner:
Bridgeport - Normal Heights, L.P. (0.043%)
Bridgeport - City Heights, L.P. (0.043%)
Bridgeport - North Park, L.P. (0.043%)
Bridgeport - Linda Vista, L.P. (0.043%)
Ken Tal Senior Partners, L.P. (0.005%)
anted Partner:
Bridgeport - City Heights, L.P. (4.243%)
Bridgeport - Normal Heights, L.P. (4.243%)
Bridgeport - North Park, L.P. (4.243%)
Bridgeport - Linda Vista, L.P. (4.243%)
Total Share of Deficiency in Limited Partnerships

$ 67,206
63,987
52,458
28,223
270

137,880
88,089
33,589
15,437
$ 487,139

The Organization provided asset management, educational enrichment and resident services to these partnerships
for which it earned the following amounts for the year ended June 30, 2016: :

Management Educational Resident
Fees Enrichment Services Total
Mountain View Properties, Ltd, 5 573,733 47,131 § 36,000 § 656,864
Bridgeport Properties, L.P. 78,776 - : - 78,776
Ken Tal Senior Partners, L.P. 7,685 - - 7,685
$ 660,194 47,131 § 36,000 3 743,325

Note 9 - Property and Equipment:

Property and equipment consist of the following at June 30, 2016:

Land
Buildings and improvements
Furnishings and equipment
Vehicle
Subtotal
Less: Accumulated depreciation -
Property and Equipment, Net
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$ 1,922,374
9,400,986
670,797
25,805
12,019,962

(6,303,076)
55716886



SAN DIEGO COMMUNITY HOUSING CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2016

Note 10 - Share of Deficiency in Other Entity:

The Organization owns 40% of Neighborhood CDC Construction, a Corporation, which is accounted for on the
equity method. The Organization’s share of the deficiency in other entity totaled $85,127 at June 30, 2016.

Note 11 - Notes Pavable:

Notes payable consist of the following at June 30, 2016:

Torrey Apartments

Note payable held by Western Alliance in the original amount of
$3,500,000. Monthly payments of $17,960 including interest at the greater
of 4.5% or the LIBOR rate at closing, plus 275 basis points (4.53% at
* June 30, 2016) are due through June 2020. Interest during the secondary
period, June 2020 until maturity in June 2025, will be calculated using the
greater of 4.50% or LIBOR rate in effect at the commencement of the
secondary period, plus 275 basis points. The note is secured by a deed of
trust on 228 Chambers Street. '$ 3,446,003

Winona Apartments

Note payable held by JP Morgan Chase Bank, N.A. in the original amount
of $590,000. Monthly payments of $3,660 including interest at 6.32% are
due through July 2020. The note is secured by a deed of trust on 3845
Winona Avenue. Accrued interest totaled $2,561 at June 30, 2016. 486,185

El Cajon Apartments

Note payable held by Neighborhood National Bank in the original amount

of $686,250. Monthly payments of $4,246 including interest at 6.50% are

due through January 2020. The note is secured by a deed of trust on 735 - :
739 El Cajon Blvd. 547,625

Note payable held by PD and KYM Properties, L.P. in the original amount

of $250,000. The note bears interest at 5% with interest payments due

quarterly. Prmcxpal and unpaid interest was due March 2016. The note is

secured by a deed of trust on 735 - 739 El Cajon Blvd. Subsequent to year

end, the Organization paid down the principal portion of the note in the

amount of $50,000. One of the board members owns a general partner _

interest in PD and KYM Properties, L.P. 50,000
Total El Cajon Apartments 597,625
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SAN DIEGO COMMUNITY HOUSING CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30,2016

Note 11 - Notes Payable: (Continued)

QOcean View Apartments

Note payable to the San Diego Housing Commission in the original amount
of $127,345. The note bears interest at 3% per annum. Annual payments
of principal and interest are payable only from 50% of “residual receipts,”
as defined in the loan agreement through July 2065. Secured by a deed of
trust on 3992 Ocean View Blvd. Accrued interest totaled $87,422 at June
30, 2016. : $ 127,345

Note payable to the San Diego Housing Commission in the original amount
of $80,183. The note bears interest at 3% per annum. Annual payments of
principal and interest are payable only from 50% of “residual receipts,” as
defined in the loan agreement through July 2065. Secured by a deed of trust
on 3992 Ocean View Blvd. Accrued interest totaled $55,961 at
June 30, 2016. 80,183

Note payable to the San Diego Housing Commission in the original amount
of $300,000. The note bears interest at 3% per annum. Annual payments
of principal and interest are payable only from 50% of “residual receipts,”
as defined in the loan agreement through July 2065. Secured by a deed of
trust on 3992 Ocean View Blvd. Accrued interest totaled $47,142 at
June 30, 2016. 296,922
Total Ocean View Apartments 504,450

Colorado Apartments

Note payable to the City of Chula Vista in the original amount of $331,310.
The note bears interest at 3% per annum. Annual payments of principal and
interest are payable only from “residual receipts” as defined in the loan -
agreement through August 2065. Secured by a deed of trust on 809
Colorado Avenue. Accrued interest totaled $62,141 at June 30, 2016. ’ 331,310

Glover Apartments

Note payable to the City of Chula Vista in the original amount of $668,690.
The note bears interest at 3% per annum. Annual payments of principal and
interest are payable only from “residual receipts” as defined in the loan
agreement through October 2065. Secured by a deed of trust on 563 - 567
Glover Avenue. Accrued interest totaled $104,569 at June 30, 2016. 668,690
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SAN DIEGO COMMUNITY HOUSING CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30,2016

Note 11 - Notes Pavable: (Continued)

Hacienda Townhomes

Note payable held by Berkadia Commercial Mortgage in the original

amount of $745,000. Monthly payments of $5,113 including interest at .

6.01% through the year 2019. Interest readjusted in January, 2010 and will

readjust again in January, 2020 to the lower of the lender’s current market

rate for similar transactions or an annual rate 2.25% above the weekly

average yield on U.S. Treasury Securities. Any unpaid principal and

interest are due in January 2025. Secured by a first deed of trust on 350 17%

Street. Accrued interest totaled $2,057 at June 30, 2016. 3 410,675

Note payable held by Citicorp Mortgage, Inc. in the original amount of
$505,501 and bears no interest provided the property securing the note is
not transferred to a party not approved by the lender and the property and
its tenants comply with the affordable restrictions. The note matures in
January 2035 and is secured by a second deed of trust on 350 17" Street. 505,501

Note payable held by the San Diego Housing Commission in the original

amount of $748,197 and bears interest at 4.5%. Principal and accrued

interest are due and payable at the earlier of the project generating sufficient

residual receipts or November 2047. Secured by a third deed of trust on :

350 17" Street. Accrued interest totaled $1,396,174 at June 30, 2016. 748,197

Note payable held by Civic San Diego, the successor agency to the
Redevelopment Agency of the City of San Diego, in the original amount of
$363,196 and bears interest at 3% with all principal and accrued interest
due and payable July 2048. Principal payments may be deferred at the
discretion of Civic San Diego. Secured by a fourth deed of trust on 350 17*
Street. Accrued interest totaled $244,899 at June 30, 2016. 363,196

Note payable held by Mercy Housing, Inc. in the original amount of
$436,854 bears no interest and is payable annually to the extent that
revenues exceed expenses including debt service and the partnership
management fees. Any unpaid principal is due September 2024. Secured

by a fifth deed of trust on 350 17" Street. 436,854
Total Hacienda Townhomes ' 2,464,423
Total Notes Payable . 8,498,686

Less: Current Portion ' _ (175,661)
Notes Payable, Net of Current Portion - $__8323,025
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SAN DIEGO COMMUNITY HOUSING CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30,2016

Note 11 - Notes Pavable:_ {(Continued)

Future principal payments on the notes payable are as follows:

Years Ended

June 30

2017 $ 175,661
2018 : 134,424
2019 ' 141,890
2020 628,736
2021 © 137,710
Thereafter .

7,280,265

§ 8,498,686

Note 12 - Commitments:

Operating Leases

SDCHC leases office space under operating lease agreements through August 31, 2018. Occupancy expense
included in the consolidated statement of activities totaled $81,489 for the year ended June 30, 2016.

Future minimum lease payments under the leases are as follows:

Years Ended
June 30
2017 $ 78,123
2018 81,248
2019 : . 14,174
: $ 173,545
Employee Benefit Plan

SDCHC has established a 401(k) defined contribution plan (the “Plan”) covering employees who have completed
four months of service and have attained age 18. Employees may defer up to 17% of their annual compensation,
not to exceed the annual amount allowed by law. SDCHC contributes a matching contribution of 50% of the
first 6% of employee salary deferrals. SDCHC contributed $5,575 to the Plan for the year ended June 30, 2016.

Note 13 - Litigation:

Legal claims and lawsuits arise from time to time in the normal course of business. There are pending lawsuits in
which the Organization’s management is involved. The Organization’s management and legal counsel estimate
that the potential claims against the Organization not covered by insurance, resulting from such litigation would not
materially affect the operations or financial condition of the Organization.
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SAN DIEGO COMMUNITY HOUSING CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2016

Note 14 - Restatement:

An adjustment resulting in an increase in net assets totaling $1,250,100 at June 30, 2015 was made during the current
year, which resulted in a restatement of previously reported amounts as follows as of and for the year ended June 30,
2016:

As Previously

Reported Adjustment As Restated
Statement of Financial Position:
Due to related party $ 1,312,605 § (1,250,100) § 62,505
Net assets at June 30, 2015 $ (3,538333) $§ 1,250,100 § (2,288,233)

Note 15 - Subsequent Event:

On October 7, 2016, Mountain View Properties, Ltd. (Mountain View) entered in to a Purchase and Sale Agreement
with the San Diego Housing Commission (Commission), whereby Mountain View agreed to sell the property to the
Commission. On January 19, 2017, the property was sold for $7,146,330. In connection with the sale, SDCHC
received a net distribution from the Commission of approximately $2,200,000.
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SAN DIEGO COMMUNITY HOUSING CORPORATION
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

Federal Agency or Passed
CEDA Pass-Through Through to Federal
Federal Grants/Pass-Through Grantor/Program Title Number Number Subrecipients  Expenditures
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development:
Pass-Through Programs From:
Community Development Block Grants/Entitlement Grants: - 14218
City of Chula Vista : N/A $ -3 1,000,000
San Diego Housing Commission - 296,922
Total Community Development Block Grants/Entitlement Grants . - 1,296,922
HOME Investment Partnerships Program: ' 14.239
San Diego Housing Comnission } N/A - 127,345
Total Pass-Through Programs . ] - 1,424 267
Total U.S. Depariment of Housing
and Urban Development - - 1,424,267
Total Expenditures of Federal Awards . 5 - § 1424267

Note 1 - Basis of Presentation;

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the Schedule) includes the federal award activity of
San Diego Community Housing Corporation under programs of the federal government for the year ended
June 30, 2016. The information in this Schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S.
Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of
the operations of San Diego Community Housing Corporation, it is not intended to and does not present the financial
position, changes in net assets, or cash flows of San Diego Community Housing Corporation.

Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies:

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such expenditures are
recognized following, as applicable, either the cost principles contained in OMB Circular A-122, Cost Principles
for Non-Profit Organizations or the cost principles contained in Uniform Guidance wherein certain types of
expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement. Pass through entity identifying numbers are
presented where available.

San Diego Community Housing Corporation has elected not to use the 10-percent de minimis indirect cost rate as
allowed under Uniform Guidance.
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SAN DIEGO COMMUNITY HOUSING CORPORATION
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

Note 3 - Loan Programs:

The following is the activity of the loans payable for the year ended June 30, 2016:

Loans Awarded Loan Principal

for the Year Repaid for the
CFDA . Loan Outstanding at Ended ‘ Year Ended Loan Qutstanding at
Number Program Name : * June 30, 2015 June 30, 2016 June 30,2016 June 30, 2016
14.218 Community Development Block Grants/Entitlement Grants: .
City of Chula Vista 1,000,000 : - - 1,000,000
San Diego Housing Commission 296,922 - - 296,922
$ 1,296922 § -8 - 8 1,296,922
14.239 HOME Investiment Partnerships Program:
San Diego Housing Commission 3 127345 % - 5 - 8 127,345
Total loans ’ § 1,424,267 § - $ ‘- 3 1,424,267
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Leaf ¢ Cole, LLP
Certified Public Accountants
A Parvenership of Professional Corporations

Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control Over
Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters
Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in
Accordance With Government Auditing Standards

To the Board of Directors '
San Diego Community Housing Corporation

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States, the financial statements of San Diego Community Housing Corporation, which
comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2016, and the related statements of activities and cash
flows for the year then ended and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon
dated October 3, 2017.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered San Diego Commimity Housing

Corporation’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of San Diego Community Housing Corporation’s internal
control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of San Diego Community Housing
Corporation’s internal control. : '

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough
to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and
was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we
consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
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To the Board of Directors | Page 2
San Diego Community Housing Corporation '

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether San Diego Community Housing Corporation’s financial
statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of
laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material
effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with
those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results
of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under
Government Auditing Standards. '

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization’s internal control or
on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing

Standards in considering the Organization’s internal contro! and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is
not suitable for any other purpose. ‘

Leaficole LLP

San Diego, California
October 3, 2017
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Leaf o Cole, LLP
Certified Public Acconntants
A Partuership of Professional Corporations

Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance
for the Major Program and on Internal Control Over
Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance

To the Board of Directors :
San Diego Community Housing Corporation

Report on Compliance fm"'the Major Federal Program

We have audited San Diego Community Housing Corporation’s compliance with the types of compliance
requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on San
Diego Community Housing Corporation’s major federal program for the year ended June 30, 2016. San Diego
Community Housing Corporation’s major federal program is identified in the summary of auditor's results section
of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of its
federal awards applicable to its federal program. :

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for San Diego Community Housing Corporation’s major
federal program based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our
audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200,
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost-Principles, and Audit Requirements Jor Federal Awards (Uniform
Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above
that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on
a test basis, evidence about San Diego Community Housing Corporation’s compliance with those requirements and
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on comp liance for the major federal program.
However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of San Diego Community Housing Corporation’s
compliance. .

" Opinion on the Major Federal Program

In our opinion, San Diego Community Housing Corporation complied, in all material respects, with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on its major federal program
for the year ended June 30, 2016.
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To the Board of Directors : _ Page 3
San Diego Community Housing Corporation

Other Matters

The results of our auditing procedures disclosed instances of noncompliance, which are required to be reported in
accordance with the Uniform Guidance and which are described in the accompanying schedule of findings and
questioned costs as item 2016-001. Our opinion on the major federal program is not modified with respect to this
matter.

San Diego Community Housing Corporation’s response to the noncompliance findings identified in our audit is
described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. San Diego Community Housing
Corporation’s response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance and,
accordingly, we express no opinion on the response.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of San Diego Community Housing Corporation is responsible for establishing and maintaining

. effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning
and performing our audit of compliance, we considered San Diego Community Housing Corporation’s internal
control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on the major
federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on compliance for the major federal program and to test and report on internal control over
compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness
of San Diego Community Housing Corporation’s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent,
or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis.
A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal
control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than
a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not
been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform Guidance.
Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Leaticole LLP

San Diego, California -
October 3, 2017 ‘
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SAN DIEGO COMMUNITY HOUSING CORPORATION
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

Section I - Summary of Auditor’s Results:

" Financial Statements

Type of auditor’s report issued on whether the financial statemennts
audited were prepared in accordance to U.S. GAAP: Unmodified

Internal control over financial reporting:

Material weaknesses identified? Yes X No

Significant deficiencies identified? Yes X No

. Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? ' Yes X No
Federal Awards

Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance
for major program: Unmodified

Internal control over major program:

Material weaknesses identified? Yes X No
Significant deficiencies identified? Yes X - No
Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported X Yes No

in accordance with 2CFR Section 200.516(a)

Identification of major program:

CDFA Number Name of Federal Program or Cluster
14.218 | Community Development Block Grants/
Entitlement Grants

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between
Type A and Type B programs: : $ 750,000

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? ' Yes X No

Section II - Financial Statement Findings:

None
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SAN DIEGO COMMUNITY HOUSING CORPORATION
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

Section III - Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs: ,

Department of Housing and Urban Development

'Findiné 2016-001: Community Development Block Grants/Entitlement Grants - CFDA No. 14.218

Condition

A single audit in accordance with Uniform Guidance was not completed within nine months of the fiscal v
year end. '

Criteria

Uniform Guidance requires recipients of federal awards that expend $750,000 or more in federal awards to
file a single audit with the Federal Audit Clearinghouse no later than nine months after the end of the fiscal
year,

Cause

The Organization was involved in a dispute related to a note payable on its investment in limited partnerships.

Effect

The single audit has not been completed within nine months after the end of the fiscal year.

. Recommendation
The Organization should develop a procedure for reviewing and monitoring the filing requirements and due

date of their reporting obligation related to federal awards to ensure that the single audit requirement is met
and the audit is completed and filed within the time required by Uniform Guidance.

Response

In the future, the Organization will complete the single audit filing within the time required by Uniform
Guidance.
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SAN DIEGO COMMUNITY HOUSING CORPORATION
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

Department of Housing and Urban Development

Finding 2015 - 001: Community Development Block Grants/Entitlement Grants - CFDA No. 14.218
Condition

A single audit in accordance with OMB Circular A-133 was not completed within nine months of the fiscal
year end.

Recommendation

The Organization should develop a procedure for reviewing and monitoring the filing requirements and due
date of their reporting obligation related to federal awards to ensure that the single audit requirement is
identified and the audit is completed and filed within the time required by OMB Circular A-133.

- Current Status

The single audit in accordance with OMB Circular A-133 for the year ended June 30, 2015 has been
completed.
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To the Board of Directors Page 2
San Diego Community Housing Corporation

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether San Diego Community Housing Corporation’s
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a
direct and material effect on the determination of consolidated financial statement amounts. However, providing
an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not
express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are
required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization’s internal control or
on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the Organization’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is
not suitable for any other purpose.

Leaficole LLf

San Diego, California
July 2, 2018
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Leaf & Cole, LL
Certificd Public Acconntants
A Paytnership of Professional Corporations

Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance
for the Major Program and on Internal Control Over
Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance

To the Board of Directors
San Diego Community Housing Corporation

Report on Compliance for the Major Federal Program

We have audited San Diego Community Housing Corporation’s compliance with the types of compliance
requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on San
Diego Community Housing Corporation’s major federal program for the year ended June 30, 2017. San Diego
Community Housing Corporation’s major federal program is identified in the summary of auditor’s results section
of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants
applicable to its federal program.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for San Diego Community Housing Corporation’s major
federal program based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our
audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States; the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance).
Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could
have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence about San Diego Community Housing Corporation’s compliance with those requirements and performing
such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for out opinion on compliance for the major federal program.
However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of San Diego Community Housing Corporation’s

compliance.
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To the Board of Directors Page 2
San Diego Community Housing Corporation

Opinion on the Major Federal Program

In our opinion, San Diego Community Housing Corporation complied, in all material respects, with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on its major federal program
for the year ended June 30, 2017.

Other Matters

The results of our auditing procedures disclosed instances of noncompliance, which are required to be reported in
accordance with the Uniform Guidance and which are described in the accompanying schedule of findings and
questioned costs as item 2017-001. Our opinion on the major federal program is not modified with respect to this
matter.

San Diego Community Housing Corporation’s response to the noncompliance findings identified in our audit is
described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. San Diego Community Housing
Corporation’s response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance and,
accordingly, we express 1o opinion on the response.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of San Diego Community Housing Corporation is responsible for establishing and maintaining
effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred fo above. In planning
and performing our audit of compliance, we considered San Diego Community Housing Corporation’s internal
control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on the major
federal program to determine the anditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on compliance for the major federal program and to test and report on internal control over
compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness

of San Diego Community Housing Corporation’s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent,
or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis.
A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal
control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than
a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.
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To the Board of Directors Page 3
San Diego Community Housing Corporation

v d

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may
exist that were not identified. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we
consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The pufpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of

internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform Guidance.
Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Leaficole tLf

San Diego, California
July 2, 2018
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SAN DIEGO COMMUNITY HOUSING CORPORATION
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

Section I - Summary of Auditor’s Results:

Financial Statements

Type of auditor’s report issued on whether the financial statements
audited were prepared in accordance to U.S. GAAP: Unmodified

Internal control over financial reporting:

Material weaknesses identified? Yes X No

Significant deficiencies identified? Yes X No
Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? Yes X No
Federal Awards

Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance
for major program: Unmodified

Internal control over major program:

Material weaknesses identified? Yes X No
Significant deficiencies identified? Yes X No
Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported X Yes No

in accordance with 2CFR Section 200.516(2)?

Identification of major program:

CDFA Number Name of Federal Program or Cluster
14.218 Community Development Block Grants/
Entitlement Grants

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between
Type A and Type B programs: $ 750,000

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? Yes X No

Section II - Financial Statement Findings:

None
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SAN DIEGO COMMUNITY HOUSING CORPORATION
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

Section ITI - Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs:

Department of Housing and Urban Development

Finding 2017-001: Community Development Block Grants/Entitlement Grants (CEDA No. 14.218)

Condition

A single audit in accordance with Uniform Guidance was not completed within nine months of the fiscal
year end.

Criteria

Uniform Guidance requires recipients of federal awards that expend $750,000 or more in federal awards to
file a single audit with the Federal Audit Clearinghouse no later than nine months after the end of the fiscal
year.

Cause

The Organization is involved in a dispute related to receivables/payables to related parties.

Effect

The single audit has not been completed within nine months after the end of the fiscal year.
Recommendation

The Organization should develop a procedure for reviewing and monitoring the filing requirements and due

date of their reporting obligation related to federal awards to ensure that the single audit requirement is met
and the audit is completed and filed within the time required by Uniform Guidance.

Response

In the future, the Organization will complete the single audit filing within the time required by Uniform
Guidance.

29



SAN DIEGO COMMUNITY HOUSING CORPORATION
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2017

Department of Housing and Urban Development

Finding 2016-001: Community Development Block Grants/Entitlement Grants (CFDA No. 14.218)

Condition

A single audit in accordance with Uniform Guidance was not completed within nine months of the fiscal
year end.

Auditor’s Recommendation

The Organization should develop a procedure for reviewing and monitoring the filing requirements and due
date of their reporting obligation related to federal awards to ensure that the single audit requirement is met
and the audit is completed and filed within the time required by Uniform Guidance.

Status

The Organization has completed the single audit filing required by Uniform Guidance for the year ended
Tune 30, 2016.
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